Mukesh M. Shah & Co. DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Members of Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Arvind Lifestyle Brands
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, and its
loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our respensibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 43 of the standalone financial statements, which describes the
uncertainties and the impact of COVID 19 pandemic on the Company’s operations and standalone
financial statements as assessed by the Management.

Our conclusion on the statement is not modified in respect of this matter.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

« The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include
the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

* Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

* In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materlally misstated.

« If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
egard.
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Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.
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« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021, were audited by one
of the joint auditor, Mukesh M. Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants, who had expressed an
unmodified opinion thereon as per their report dated June 03, 2021.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. :

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.
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d)

e)

g)

h)

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “"Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section
197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion
and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its standalone financial statements;

it. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ili.  There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has
caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of
Rule 11i(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

V. The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not
proposed final dividend for the year.

2. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “"Annexure B” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co. For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 106625W) (Firm’s Registration No. 117365W)

' (/‘\
G Lgtesd Mmﬂg@‘“ Lo

CA. Chandresh S. Shah Kartikeya Raval

(Partner) (Partner)

(Membership No. 042132) (Membership No. 106189)
(UDIN: 22042132ARPFEX7584) 7, Heritage (UDIN: 22106189ARGUMX6832)

Chambers,
Nehry Nagar,

Ambawadi

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: August 18, 2022

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: August 18, 2022
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Arvind Lifestyle Brands
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets,
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

authorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co. For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 106625W) (Firm’s Registration No. 117365W)

C Sl
CA. Chandresh S. Shah Kartikeya Raval
(Partner) (Partner)
(Membership No. 042132) o {(Membership No. 106189)
(UDIN: 22042132ARPFEX7584]| « i -a; = (UDIN: 22106189ARGUMX6832)
Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad
Date: August 18, 2022 Date: August 18, 2022
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books

of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of property, plant and equipment so to
cover all the items once every 3 years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the
year and were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) The company does not have any immovable properties of freehold land and building.
In respect of immovable properties of building that have been taken on lease and
disclosed as right-of-use assets in the standalone financial statements, the lease
agreements are in the name of the company, where the company is the lessee in the
agreement.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

(i) (a) The inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories when compared
with books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of
time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, including the revised submissions made by the Company to its lead
bankers based on closure of books of accounts at the year end, the revised quarterly
returns or statements comprising stock statements, book debt statements,
statements on ageing analysis of the debtors/other receivables, and other stipulated
financial information filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions
are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the
respective quarters and no material discrepancies have been observed.

(iii) The Company has made investments in, provided guarantee and granted loans, secured or
unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the
ear, in respect of which:
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(a) The Company has provided loans and stood guarantee during the year and details of which
are given below:

£ {Rs. In crores

Particulars ‘ __iloans 1[,§uarantegs

A. Aggregate amount granted /

_provided during the year:

-~ Subsidiaries 98.00 52:50 . .

- Others 2.02 -
B. Balance outstanding as at
balance sheet date in respect of
above cases:* R

- Subsidiaries 48.01 92.50 .
.o Others 4.12 #
*includes opening balances.

The Company has not provided any advances in the nature of loans to any other entity
during the year.

(b) The investments made, guarantees provided, and the terms and conditions of the grant of
all the above-mentioned loans and guarantees provided, during the year are, in our
opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) The Company has granted loans to its subsidiaries, which are payable on demand. Accrued
interest at every year end is converted to loan as per the agreement. In our opinion, the
repayments of principal amounts (when demanded) are regular. In respect of loans
granted by the Company to others, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of
interest are regular as per stipulation.

(d) According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
performed, in respect of loans granted provided by the Company, there is no overdue
amount remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date.

(e) None of the loans granted by the Company which have fallen due during the year, have
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans
given to the same parties.

(f) The Company has granted loans which are repayable on demand, details of which are

given below:
(Rs. In Crores)
Particulars All  Parties | Related
{including Parties
related
: parties)
_Agaregate amount loans: 52:13 48.01 =
- Repayable on demand (A) 48.01 48.01
- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of | - -
repayment (B)
Total (A+B) 48.01 48.01
Percentage of loans/advances in nature of loans to the | 92.10% 100%
total loans

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,

v)

= paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided,
as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public to which the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the
provisions of section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014, as amended, would apply. Accordingly, clause (v) of
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(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the Company by
the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, reporting
under clause (vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom,
duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable
to the Company have been regularly deposited by it with the appropriate authorities
in all cases during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, cess and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:

Name of | Nature | Amount Amount Period to | Forum where
Statute of Dues | (Rs. In | unpaid which the | Dispute is
Crores) (Rs. In | Amount pending
. 2 Crores) Relates
The Income | 0.51 0.51 2016-17 Income Tax
Income Tax Appeliate
Tax Act, | Tribunal
1961 24.11 24.11 2017-18 Commissioner
of Income Tax
e Appeal
The Value 6.09 2.26 2010-11 Deputy
Karnataka | Added Commissioner,
Value Tax Commercial
Added Tax Taxes
Act, 2003 5.17 5.17 2012-13 High Court of
2013-14 Karnataka
2014-15
2015-16
SN o -~ 2016‘17 S——
The Kerala | Value | 1.75 1.38 2005-06 Assistant
Value Added 2007-08 Commissioner,
Added Tax | Tax 2013-14 Commercial
Act, 2003 2014-15 Taxes
2015-16 1
6.52 5.65 2015-16 Assistant
2016-17 Commissioner,
2017-18 State Goods &
Services Tax
Department
1.37 1.16 2013-14 Deputy
Commissioner,
State Goods &
Service Tax
Department
The Value 0.18 0.18 2013-14 | Joint
Maharasht | Added Commissioner
ra Value | Tax L of State Tax
Added Tax '3.96 3.79 2016-17 Deputy
Act, 2002 Commissioner
of State Tax

Q)';'Page 10 of 14




Mukesh M. Shah & Co.

DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

Name of | Nature | Amount Amount Period to | Forum where
Statute of Dues | (Rs. In | unpaid which the | Dispute is
Crores) (Rs. In | Amount pending
Crores) Relates =]
The Value 0.85 0.85 2017-18 Excise &
Haryana Added Taxation Officer
Value Tax
Added Tax
Act, 2003 \
The Value 1.81 1.31 2013-14 Deputy Excise
Punjab Added and Taxation
Value Tax Commissioner
Added Tax (Appeal)
Act, 2005 0.58 0.58 2014-15 Excise and
: A Taxation Officer |
The Delhi | Value 0.04 0.04 2015-16 VAT Officer,
Value Added 2016-17 Department of
Added Tax | Tax Trade and Taxes
Act, 2004
The Value 0.13 0.12 2012-13 Assistant
Andhra Added 2013-14 Commissioner,
Pradesh Tax Commercial
Value Taxes
Added Tax
Act, 2005
The Uttar | Value 115 0.23 2012-13 Assistant
Pradesh Added Commissioner,
Value Tax Commercial
Added Tax Taxes
Act, 2008
The Central | 0.10 0.10 1998-99 Assistant
Central Sales Commissioner,
Sales Tax | Tax Commercial
Act, 1956 Taxes (Andhra
Pradesh)
0.02 0.02 2001-02 Assistant
Commissioner,
Commercial
Taxes (Tamil
Nadu)
1.11 0.92 2012-13 Assistant
Commissioner,
Commercial
Taxes (Uttar
Pradesh)
0.06 0.06 2012-13 Assistant
Commiissioner,
Commercial
Taxes
(Uttaranchal )
0.82 0.82 2016-17 VAT Officer,
Department of
Trade and Taxes
(Delhi)
1.15 1.15 2015-16 Assistant VAT
Officer,
Department of

Trade and Taxes
(Delhi}

; o
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Name of | Nature | Amount Amount | Period to | Forum where
Statute of Dues | (Rs. In | unpaid which the | Dispute is
Crores) (Rs. In | Amount pending
. R Crores) Relates SR
2.21 2.21 2014-15 Excise &
Taxation Officer
(Punjab)
3.20 3.20 2016-17 Excise &
2017-18 Taxation Officer
G B % | (Haryana)
1.59 1.42 2016-17 Deputy

Commissioner
of State Tax
» y Gl (Maharashtra)
0.36 0.36 2005-06 Deputy
Commissioner,
Commercial
Taxes
WA St | S (Karnataka)
2.06 1.55 2013-14 Deputy Excise
and Taxation
Commissioner
(Appeal)
(Punjab)

(viii)  There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961)
during the year.

(ix) (a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

{c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilised
term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(c) of
the Order is not applicable.

{d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised
on short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(e) We report that the Company has neither taken any funds from any entity or person
during the year nor it had any unutilised funds as at the beginning of the year of the
funds raised through issue of shares or borrowings in the previous year and hence,
reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

(f) The Company has raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiary companies, as per details below and has not defaulted in the repayment
of such loans raised.

Nature | Name | Amoun | Name of | Relation | Details of | Remark
of loan | of t of | subsidiar security s if any
taken Lende | Loan Yy pledged
r (Rs. In

et o Crores)

Workin | State 282.40 | Arvind Subsidiary | 3,25,57,884

g Bank of Youth shares with

Capital | India Brands a face value

Facility Private of Rs. 10 per

5 Limited share S
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(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

{xviii)

(xix)

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
- offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause
(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the
year and upto the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year (and upto the date of this report).

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies

Act, where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related

party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards. )

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate
with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports issued to the Company during the year
and covering the period upto March 31, 2022. .

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause {xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting
under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 70.36 crores during the financial year
covered by our audit and Rs. 55.82 crores in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, will get dischar he Company as and when
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(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund
specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the
provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause
(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Mukesh M. Shah & Co. For Deloitte Haskins & Sells
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 106625W) (Firm’s Registration No. 117365W)

\Kmﬁhd& Rt

C 2ot
CA. Chandresh S. Shah Kartikeya Raval
(Partner) (Partner)

(Membership No. 042132)
(UDIN: 22042132ARPFEX75

(Membership No. 106189)
(UDIN: 22106189ARGUMX6832)

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad
Date: August 18, 2022 Date: August 18, 2022
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Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN ~ U64201G)1995PLC024598
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

C &8s

Chandresh 5, Shah Kartikeya Raval Shailesh Chaturvedi
Partner Partner Director
DIN: 03023079
Place : Ahmedabad / l
Date : August 18, 2022 7‘ \%

Chtcf Financial Officer
Nehru Nagar, Place ; Bengaluru
Ambawadi Date : August 18, 2022

*

&

Director

7

Rs. In Crores
As at As at
T — e Maren 31, 3022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS - i
1. Non-current assets
{a) Praperty, plant and equipment 5 47.65 112,22
(b) Right-of-use asset 34 251.26 512,73
{<) Intangible assets 6 21.10 28.88
{d) Financial assets a -
(i) Investments : 7(a) 68.17 68.08
(ii) Loans 7(c) 0.81 1.01
(iit) Other financial assets 7(f) 24.93 98.20
{#) Deferred tax assets (net) 26 325.12 328.47
{f) Non-Current tax assets (net) 10 16.24 17.38
(g) Other non-current assets 8 40,75 23.68
Total non-current assets 796.03 1,190.65
ILCurrent assets
(2) Inventories 9 470.09 431.04
(b) Financial assets
{i) Trade receivables 7(b) 415.30 377.96
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 7 (d) 5.78 1.53
(iif) Bank balances other than (ii) above 7 (e) 15.97 10.77
{iv) Loans 7 (c) 51.32 15.70
{v) Others financlal assets # 7({n 57.11 42,52
{c) Other current assets 8 22421 244,58
{d) Assets held for sale ) 41 5.00 122.71
Total current assets 1,244.78 1,246.81
Total Assets &m.u 2,437.46
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{@) Equity share capital 11 157.50 132.720
(k) Perpetual debt 121 100.00 *
(¢} Reserves and surplus 122 230.76 298.41
Total equity 488.26 431.11
LIABILITIES
I. Non~current liabilities
(a) Financial Yabilities
(i} Botrrowings 13 (a) 34.38 107.85
(ii) Lease Liabilities 34 218.73 512,13
(iit) Other financiat liabilities 13 () 68.28 47,80
{b} Long-term provisions 14 7.81 13.49
Total non-current liabilities 329.30 681,27
IL.Current liabliities
{a) Financial kabilities
(i) Borrowings 13 (a) 383.89 571.39
(if) Lease Liabilities 34 70.31 112.12
(iii) Trade payables 13 {b) - 2
~Total outstanding dues of micra enterprises and small enterprises 47.45 115.35
~Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro P and small enterprises 645.70 389.70
(iv) Other financial liabilities 13 (o) 42.25 56,45
{b) Other current liabilities : 15 24,02 34.88
{c) Short-term provisions 14 4.63 3.40
(d) Uabilities directly associated with assets held for sale 41 5.00 41.79
Total current liabilities 1,223.25 1,325.08
Total Equity and Liabilities Ml m_
ignificant Accounting Policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements,
In terms of our report attached
For Mukesh M, Shah & Co. For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Arvind Brands Limited

D1IN: 05612583

*
VX

Company Secretary



Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN - U64201G11995PLC024598

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

Rs. In Crores
Notes Year ended Year ended
Particula:
o March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
L Income
Revenue from operations
Sale of Products 16 1,389,823 858,80
. Sale of Services 16 16.86 12,58
Operating Income 16 1.58 5.68
Revenue from operations 1,408.67 877.06
Other income 17 38.41 76.81
Total income (1) 1,447.08 953.87
Il. Expenses =
Purchases of stock-in-trade 18 877.40 83.06
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 20 (62.84) 497.93
Employee benefit expense 21 103.60 105,02
Finance costs 22 76.94 107.82
Depreciation and amortisation expense 23 129.51 140,33
Other expenses 24 472.82 265,85
Total expenses (II) 15591.43 s,_goo.o:
111, Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and tax (I-IF) (150.35) (246.14)
IV. Exceptional items 25 - (68.18)
V. Profit/(Loss) for the period before tax from Continuing (150.35) (177.96)
Operations (I1I-1V)
VI, Tax expense 26
Current Tax - %
(Excess)/short provision related to earlier years 0.49 -
Deferred Tax charge / {(credit) 3.14 {0.18)
Total tax expense 3.63 {0.18)
VIX. Profit/ (Loss) for the year (V-VI) {153.98) (177.78)
VIIL Profit/(Loss}) for the period after tax from Discontinuing
Operations a1 (132.62) (1597.95)
IX. Profit/{Loss) for the period after tax from Continuing
and Discontinuing Operations (VII+VIII) ‘ (286.60) (375.73)
X, Other comprehensive income
Items that will not to be reclassified to profit ar loss:
Re-measurement gains / (losses) on defined benefit plans 31 0.60 1.91
income tax effect on above 26 (0.21) (0.67)
Total other preh ive i / (loss) for the year, net of tax 0.39 1.24
XI, Total comprehensive
income for the year, net of
tax (IX+X) ’ (286.21) (374.49)
XI1T, Earnings per equity share 33
Nominal Value per share - Rs, 10/~ (Previous year - Rs. 10/-)
For continuing operations
Basic - Rs, ] (10.52) (15.65)
Diluted - Rs. {10.52) {15.65)
For discontinuing operations ;
Basic - Rs, (9.06) {17.42)
Diluted - Rs. (9.06) {17.42)
For i g and di tinuing operati
Basic - Rs. (19.58) (33.07)
Dituted - Rs, (19.58) (33.07)
Significant Accounting Policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.
In terms of our report attached
For Mukesh M. Shah & Co, For Deloltte Haskins & Selis For and on behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Arvind L Brands u;nn«
S S ha,l) \-K RDMRQ i)
M
Chandresh S, Shah Kartikeya Rav, Shailesh Chaturvedi Piyush
Partner Partner Director Director
. DIN: 03023079 DIN: 09612583
Place : Ahmedabad /y (‘\ " g
Date : August 18, 2022 i o Akt
s hy Lipt Jha
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place : Bengaluru

Date : August 18, 2022




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN - U64201631995PLCD24598
mmmdmmmmymmmn,m
Rs. In Crores

’,‘m ¥oae raded Yoar enged
Rty March 31,2022 Merch 31, 2021
A Operating activities X
Profit/ (Loss) after taxation from
Continulng Operations (153.98) (177.76)
Discontinuing Operations (332.62) (197,95)
Profit/ (Loss) for the year from and (286.60) (375.73)
Adjustmants to reconcile profit/(loss) before tax to net cash flows:
Depreclation/Amortization 129,51 236.54
Tax Expenses/(Credit) 362 (0.18)
Interest Income {5.30) (4.16)
Intérest and Other Borrowing Cost 75.94 107.82
Allowance for doubtfyl debts 1.456 -
Sundry debit balances written off “ 0.49
Foreign Exchange Difference (1.28) (1.87)
{Profit}/Lass on Sale of Property, Plant & Equlpment /Intangible assets {4.31) (.21)
Share based payment expense 0.36 1.39
Gain on Reassessment of Lease {4.13) {16.08)
Profit on sale of undertaking * {195.90)
Re-measurement gains / (losses) an defined benefit plans {net of taxes) 0,39 1.24
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes (89.33) (246.73)
Waorking Capital Changes:
€ 1 in 78.66 287.32
in 3/ O In trade {38.80) B81.03
(Increase) /7 Decrease in other assots 3.30 (98.89)
n 3} £ O in other fi ‘al assets 58.56 42.02
. {Intrease) / Decrease in Other Bank Salances {5.20) (9.47)
70 3 in trade p 151.31 (308.85)
TAl ) 1 other Habi (10.86) 56,77 .
7 ) in other fi [ 617 (29.49)
/ ) in 3.75) 2.40
Net Changes in Working Capital 239,37 2484
Cash Generated from Operations 150.04 (221.89)
L

Direct Tines paid (st of tncoes T reund) 1,14
ot Cash flow cexelved / (uved in) Operaiing Activiics. ias {330.19)

Purchase of ¥, Plant & / assets (25.23) (32.53)
Proceeds from disposal of Proparty, Plant & 11 assels 6,51 1.69
Purchase of investments {0.09) .
Changes in Loans and atvances (3542) 1693
Proceeds from sale of preference shares * 254.86

Anterest racelved 5.44 0,37
Net Cash flow tecelved / (Used in) Investing Activities (48.79 241,12

€ Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Issue of share capital 242.9% 376,07
Proceeds from Issue of Non Convertible Debentures 100.00 *
Repayment of long term borrowings (73.47) {28.24)
Repayment of short term borrowings {187.50) (122.08)
Repayment of Lease Liabilities 103,33) (70.45)
Aoierest 8¢ Ouner Borrawing Tom Faid. 476.83) {175.35)
et Eash flow received / {vsed in) Financing Activities (98.18) (20.08)
-
incashcaeh 222, s,
cmnmwmumwumww 3193 6,66
578 1,53
Figures In brackets indlcate outflows.
Rs. in Crares
Yawr ended Year ended
Poetiuiaes March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of:
Cash on Hand . .
Bafonces with Banks 5,78 1.83
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Note 7d) 5,78 1.53
) L2,

Saahand cash equivetenty —
The accompanylng notes are an integral part of these Financial Statersnts.
Disclosure ynder Pars 44A a5 set out In Ind AS 7 on cash fiew statempnts Undir inglas Rules, 2015 {as amended Ry In Crores

Particutars of Babifities arfsing from financing  Note et o e s ot
3 No. ASstAprill, 2011 Netcashflows .m"‘”" Other Changess  Maret 31, 2022

Currency Rates
Borrowings:
Lung term borrowings. 13(a) 143.92 (7347) . » 6211
Short term borrowings (indlucing current maturities
of long-term borrowings) 13{a) 535.32 (187.50) s . 356.16
tease Lisbilities 34 624.25 (103.33) (231.88) 269.04

Interest accrued on borcowings 13(c) 645 {6.45) - L3 .
Tota1 ETE) 7e.73) : (3700 Finae.




mummmm 0::1: Af At Apat 3, 2020

Bocrowings: ;
Long term borrowings 13(=) 98.30 (28.29) - - 143.92
Short term b gs (inch curvent
of long-term torrawings) 13(a) 467.52 {122.08) 0.56 (0.03) 535.32
Lease Lisbilities 34 722.78 (70.45) (33.08) 624.25
interest accrued on barrowings 13c) 37 £ * 545 &85
Tetet ' LN s L] S2EAS5) SN
* The same relates to amount charged in statement of profit and loss,
Notes:
umemummm‘mmmunwm‘auumum ing {Ind AS 7) "St; of Cash Flows",
I Yerms of our report attached =
For Mukesh M. Shah & Co. For Deloitte Haskins & Sells For and an behalf of the board of directors of
Reowsd ‘ 3 7 §FQ9;4/
Sl Kod G&@ e
Chandresh 5. Shah Kartikeya Raval Shalesh
Partner Partost Director Director
- (DIN: 03023079) DIN. 08612583
! L
Place :
Date : August 16, 2022 /‘Q& W
et Upi ha
Chief Company Secretary

Place : Bengalury
Date : August 18, 2022



Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN - U64201G)1995PLCO24598

Statement af Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022

w2: Equity share capital Rs, In Crores
: {Refer Note - 11}
As at March 31, 2020 96.28
Add : Tssue of Equity Share capital 36.42
As at March 31, 2021 i32.70
Add : of £ Share 24,80
As at March 31, 2022 157.50
T o e cocsiom e
B. Perpetual Debt
Perpetual Non-Convertible Debentures Rs. In Crores
R {Refer Note - 1.1}
As at March 31, 2020 -
Add : Issue during the year »
As at March 31, 2021 -
: Tssue during the 100.90
As at March 31, 2022 100.00
€. Other equity mmw Rs. In Crores
i Total Other
Reserves and Surplus 3
Parentfor Esop  Securities premium  Retained Eamings  Capital Reserve
: M% S Note 12.2 _Note 12.2 Note 12.2 :
Balonce as at April 1, 2020 2.07 1,093.06 (822.32) .05 33186
Profit/(Loss) for the year - " {375.73) - {375.73)
QOther comprehensive income / (loss) for the year = = 1.24 * 1,24
Total Comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - * (374.49) - (42.63)
Addition during the year » 339.65 - » 339.65
CM\MMIWMM&&‘WNWQ} 1.39 » = b 1,
m.t at March Sh 2021 3.46 2‘43 i71 u‘xmu 59.05 zn,u
Profit/{Loss) for the year - = {286.60) = {286.60)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - > 0.39 s 0,33
Tatal Comprehensive income / (loss) for the year - - {286.21) * 12.20
Addition during the year S 218.20 % - 218.20
Contribution received during the year (Refer Note 42) 0.36 $ 8 - 0.36
Datance a5 at March 31, 2022 (1.483.02) 55,05 23026,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Financial Statements.

202 165091

1 terms of our report attached
For Mukesh M, Shah & Co, For Deloltte Haskins & Sells For and an behalf of the board of directors of
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Arvind Brands Umited
Chandresh S, Shah Shailesh Chaturvedi m-}a
Partner Director Director
{DIN: 03023079} DIN: 09612583

Place : Ahmedabad / & -
Date : August 18, 2022 A8 : \Lh

7 s Lipi Jha

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Nehru Nagar,
Ambawadi
Ahmedabad-15

Place : Bengailuru
Date : August 18, 2022



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Corporate Information

Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited (‘the Company’) is engaged in the business of distribution and
retailing of Readymade Garment Apparels and Accessories. The brands portfolio of the
Company includes Domestic and International brands.

The Company is a Subsidiary of Arvind Fashions Limited and is incorporated under the
provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered office of the Company is
located at Naroda Road, Ahmedabad - 380025. i

The financial statements have been authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
directors on August 18, 2022,

2 Statement of Compliance and Basis of Preparation

2.1 Basis of Preparation and Presentation and Statement of Compliance

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 (as amended), read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and
presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III of the Act and other relevant provisions
of the Act as applicable. The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under
the historical cost convention, except certain assets and liabilities, which have been measured
at fair value as required by the relevant Ind AS.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
. standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change
in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The Financial Statements comprising of Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including
other comprehensive income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows as
at March 31, 2022 have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirements of Division II of schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant
schedule III) as applicable to Financial Statement.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notification, amended Schedule 111 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the amendments are applicable for financial periods commencing
from April 1, 2021. The Previous year numbers are regrouped or reclassified, where necessary
to comply with the amendment. The Company has evaluated the effect of the amendments on
its financial statements and complied with the same.




2.2 Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the
followings:

= Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy
regarding financial instruments);

» Derivative financial instruments measured at fair value;
Share based payments;
¢ Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;

2.3 Rounding off

The Financials Statement are prepared in Indian Rupees (INR) and all the values are rounded
to nearest crores as per the requirement of Schedule 111, except when otherwise indicated.
Figures less than Rs,50,000 which are required to be shown separately, have been shown in
actual brackets

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following are the significant accounting policies applied by the Company in preparing its
financial statements consistently to all the periods presented:

3.1 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on current/non-
current classification.

An asset is current when it is:
* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating
cycle;
» Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or
Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;
e It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or :
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

7" 7, Herltage
Chambers,
Nehru Nagay,
Ambawadi
Abmedabad-15




Operating cycle

Operating cycle of the Company is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. For the purpose of current/non-current
classification of assets, the Company has ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve
maonths.

3.2 Non-Current Assets classified as held for sale

The Company classifies non-current assets as held for sale if their carrying amounts are
recoverable principally through a sale rather than through continuing use of the assets and
actions required to complete such sale indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to
the plan to sell will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn, Also, such assets
are classified as held for sale only if the management expects to complete the sale within
one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying .
amount and the fair value less cost to sell. Non-current assets are not depreciated or
amortized.

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a business of the entity that has been disposed off or is classified
as held for sale and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose off such a line of business or
area of operations. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Use of estimates and judgements

The estimates and judgements used in the preparation of the financial statements are
continuously evaluated by the Company and are based on historical experience and various
other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company
believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Difference between actual results
and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date,
or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions existing as
at the reporting date.

3.3 Business combinations and goodwill

In accordance with Ind AS 101 provisions related to first time adoption, the Company has
elected to apply Ind AS accounting for business combinations prospectively from 1 April 2015.
As such, Indian GAAP balances relating to business combinations entered into before that date,
including goodwill, have been carried forward with minimal adjustment.

7, Heritage
Chambers,
Nehry Nagar,

Ambawadi
Ahmedabad-15




Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. At the acquisition date,
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are measured at fair value. For this purpose,
the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they
are measured at their acquisition date fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of
resources embedying economic benefits is not probable. The consideration transferred is
measured at fair value at acquisition date and includes the fair value of any contingent
consideration. However, deferred tax asset or liability and any liability or asset relating to
employee benefit arrangements arising from a business combination are measured and
recognized in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 12, Income Taxes and Ind AS 19,
Employee Benefits, respectively. Where the consideration transferred exceeds the fair value of
the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the excess is recorded as goodwill.
Alternatively, in case of a bargain purchase wherein the consideration transferred is lower than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, the Company after
assessing fair value of all identified assets and liabilities, record the difference as a gain in other
comprehensive income and accumulate the gain in equity as capital reserve. The costs of
acquisition excluding those relating to issue of equity or debt securities are charged to the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

In case of business combinations involving entities under common control, the above policy
does not apply. Business combinations involving entities under common control are accounted
for using the pooling of interest method. The net assets of the transferor entity or business are
accounted at their carrying amounts on the date of the acquisition subject to necessary
adjustments required to harmonise accounting policies. Any excess or shortfall of the
consideration paid over the share capital of transferor entity or business is recognised as capital
reserve under equity.

Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency
spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on
settlement of such transaction and on translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are recognised in profit or loss.
They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-




3.5

monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on the change in fair value of the item.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivatives at fair value at the end of
each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either;

= In the principal market for the asset or liability
Or

= Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
» Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable. 7
* Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis,
the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair
value measurement, such as derivative instruments and for non-recurring measurement, such
as asset held for sale.

At each reporting date, management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s
accounting policies. For this analysis, management verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and
other relevant documents.

Management compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable on yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy, as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.
» Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
* Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
* Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets measured at fair value on the date
of transition
e Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the
plant and equipment. When significant parts of Property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful life and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major inspection is
performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the
recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of fixed assets that are not yet installed and ready
for their intended use at the balance sheet date.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss when
the asset is derecognised,
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Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided so as to write off the cost of assets
less residual values over their useful life of the assets, using the straight line method as
prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act 2013 except for following assets
category as shown in Table below.

Buildings 20 Years
Plant & Machinery 6 to 15 Years
Office Equipment 6 to 8 Years
Furniture & Fixture 6 to 9 Years
Computer Software 5 Years
Motor Cars 4 Years

However, Leasehold Improvements have been depreciated considering the lease term or
useful life whichever is lower.

The management believes that the useful life as given above best represent the period over
which management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful life for these assets are
different from the useful life as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II to the Companies Act
2013. Any change in useful file are being applied prospectively in accordance with Ind AS 8 -
“Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful life, they are
accounted for as separate items (Major Components) and are depreciated over their useful
life or over the remaining useful life of the principal assets whichever is less.

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the
period of use.

The residual values, useful life and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Leases

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company
assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for
a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract
involves the use of an identified asset (2) the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (3) the Company has the
right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset
(ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee,




except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value
leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the
end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is
reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement
date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets
are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is
determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future
lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of
domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to
the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise
an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows.

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated July 24, 2020, issued an amendment
to Ind AS 116 - Leases, by inserting a practical expedient w.r.t. “Covid-19- Related Rent
Concessions” effective from the period beginning on or after April 01, 2020 and vide
notification dated June 18, 2021, extended practical expedient upto June 30, 2022.

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the COVID-19 pandemic and only if all of the following conditions are met:

(i) The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change.

(ii) any reduction in lease payments affect only payments originally due on or
before June 30, 2022.

(ii) There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease




Pursuant to the above amendment, the Company has applied the practical expedient with
effect from April 01, 2020. The Company has accounted the unconditional rent concessions
in "Other Income” in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR) and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an
adjustment to the interest cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of the respective asset.

Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents
the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed
specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such. current investments is
deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a project
form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted
average of rates applicable to relevant general barrowings of the Company during the year.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the statement of profit and loss
during the extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is
interrupted.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following
initial recognition, Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which expenditure is incurred.

The useful life of intangible assets are assessed as finite.

Intangible assets with finite life are amortised over their useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite life is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are not amortised, but are tested for impairment
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable.
If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.
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Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation

Job Workers’ Network Value, Vendors’ Network Value and Distribution Network Value have
been amortized on Straight Line basis over the period of five years.

Value of License Brands acquired under demerger scheme has been amortized on Straight
Line basis over the period of ten years.

Technical Process Development has been amortized on Straight Line basis over the period of
five years and Product Development has been amortized on Straight Line basis over the period
of three to five years.

Software is depreciated over management estimate of its useful life of five years.

Inventories

Inventories of Raw material, Stock-in-trade and Packing Material are valued at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted
for as follows:

» Raw materials: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first
out basis.

= Stock in Trade: Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted
average basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset

may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable

-amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs to sell

and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets of the Company.
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a)

When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determ ining fair value less costs to sell, recent
market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair
value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecasts which are
prepared separately for each of the Company’s CGU to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five
years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future
cash flows after the fifth year.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment {osses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s
recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are tested for impairment annually either
individually or at the CGU level, as appropriate and when circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. -

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from sale of traded goods and related services.
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has
generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, except for the agency
services below, because it typically controls the goods or services before transferring them to
the customer and sales under sale or return basis arrangements.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods
is transferred to the customer, i.e., generally on delivery of the goods.
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Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the
amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Some contracts for the sale of goods provide
customers with a right of return and discounts. The rights of return and discounts give rise to
variable consideration.

i. Rights of return

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period.
The Company uses the expected value method to estimate the goods that will be returned
because this method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the Company
will be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration that
can be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected to be returned, instead
of revenue, the Company recognises a refund liability. A right of return asset (and
corresponding adjustment to change in inventory is also recognised for the right to recover
products from a customer.

ii. Discounts

Discounts are offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the variable
consideration for the expected future discounts, the Company applies the expected value
method. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is
primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract.

b) Contract balances
i. Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to
the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for
the earned consideration that is conditional.

ii. Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that. is
unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration
is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial assets in section (xiv) Financial instruments
- initial recognition and subsequent measurement.

iii. Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the

Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services




to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment
is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

Assets and liabilities arising from returns
i. Returnable Asset

Right of return asset represents the Company’s right to recover the goods expected to be
returned by customers. The asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory,
less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the value
of the returned goods. The Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any
revisions to its expected level of returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of
the returned products.

il, Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or
receivable) from the customer and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately
expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting
period. Refer to above accounting policy on variable consideration.

d) Sale of goods - customer loyalty programme (deferred revenue)

The Company operates a loyalty point programme which allows customers to accumulate
points when they purchase the products. The points can be redeemed for free products,
subject to @ minimum number of points being obtained. Consideration received is allocated
between the product sold and the points issued, with the consideration allocated to the points
equal to their fair value. Fair value of the points is determined by applying a statistical
analysis. The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised as revenue when the
points are redeemed.

e) Rendering of services

f)

Revenue from store displays and sponsorships are recognised based on the period for which
the products or the sponsors’ advertisements are promoted/ displayed. Facility management
fees are recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract.

Revenue from other services is recognised based on the services rendered in accordance with
the terms of contacts on the basis of work performed.

Gift Vouchers

The amount collected on sale of a gift voucher is recognized as a liability and transferred to
revenue (sales) when redeemed or to revenue (sale of services) on expiry

g) Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest-bearing financial assets
classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using




h)
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the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included
in other income in the statement of profit or loss.

Profit or loss on sale of Investments

Profit or Loss on sale of investments is recorded on transfer of title from the Company and is
determined as the difference between the sale price and carrying value of investment and
other incidental expenses.

Insurance claims

Claims receivable on account of Insurance are accounted for to the extent the Company is
reasonably certain of their ultimate collection,

Export Incentive

Export incentives under various schemes notified by government are accounted for in the
year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in receiving the same.

Financial instruments - initial recognition and subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial assets
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

(il)Subsequent measurement of financial assets
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four
categories:
« Financial assets at amortised cost
* Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
« Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
¢ Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)




Financial assets at amortised cost:

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well
as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the
other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign excha nge gain or loss in the P&L.
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified from the equity to P&L. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI
financial asset is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial asset, which does not
meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVT OCl, is classified
as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise
meets amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income criteria, as
at fair velue through profit or loss. However, such election is allowed only if doing
so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to
as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument
as at FVTPL.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value with all changes recognised in Statement of profit and loss.
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b) Equity instruments:

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such
election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair
value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.
There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment.
However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognized in the P&L

\
(iii) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when:

- the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or

- The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or
has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control
of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent
of the Company'’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured
on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

(iv) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial
recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets
which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are
debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be
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infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business
model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant to the Company’s
operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business
model accurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is
significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the
immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The
Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

(v)Impairment of financial assets
a) Financial Assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets
and credit risk exposure:

« Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost
e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

* Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial
asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 109 and
Ind AS 115

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance
on: »
« Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 115, if they do not contain a significant
financing component
* Trade receivables or contract assets resulting from transactions within the
scope of Ind AS 109 and Ind AS 115 that contain a significant financing
component, if the Company applies practical expedient to ignore separation of
time value of money, and
* Al lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit
risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month
ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased
significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss

o
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the
lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date,

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the
cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

* All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment,
extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the financial
instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial
instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the Company is required to use
the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

= Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized
as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected
in a separate line under the head “Other expenses” in the P&L. The balance sheet
presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contract assets and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e. as an integral part of the
measurement of those assels in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the
net carrying amount, Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does
not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the
objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in’
credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI)
financial assets, i.e., financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/
origination.

<) Financial Liabilities
(i) Initial recognition and measurement of financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value minus, in the case of
financial liabilities not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative
financial instruments.




(ii)Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

« Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held
for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated
as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or
loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss
are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated
any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

« Loans and Borrowings
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

(iii) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognised from its balance
sheet when, and only when, it is extinguished i.e. when the obligation specified in
the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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d) Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts
to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly
to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised
in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge item affects profit or loss or
treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as:
« Fair value hedges when hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a
recognised asset or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment
« Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is
either attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability
or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in an
unrecognised firm commitment

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents "
the hedge relationship to which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation
includes the Company’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge,
the hedging/ economic relationship, the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the
risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes
in the hedging instrument’s fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged
item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected
to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are
assessed on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described
below: :

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging instrument is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss as finance costs. The change in the fair value of the hedged item
attributable to the risk hedged is recorded as part of the carrying value of the hedged
item and is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss as finance costs.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried at amortised cost, any adjustment to
carrying value is amortised through profit or loss over the remaining term of the hedge
using the EIR method. EIR amortisation may begin as soon as an adjustment exists and
no later than when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair value
attributable to the risk being hedged.

Nehru Nag
Ambawadi
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If the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a hedged item,
the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable
to the hedged risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss
recognised in profit and loss.

e) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and
short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are
considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Taxes
Tax expense comprises of current income tax and deferred tax,

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is
recognised outside Statement of profit and loss. Current income tax are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
¢ When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset

or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nar taxable profit or loss;




* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

» When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss;

« In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside Statement of profit and loss is recognised
outside Statement of profit and loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

The Company recognizes tax credits in the nature of MAT credit as an asset only to the extent
that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which tax credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the
year in which the Company recognizes tax credits as an asset, the said asset is created by
way of tax credit to the Statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews such tax credit
asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the Company does not
have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period. Deferred tax
includes MAT tax credit.




3.16 Employee Benefits

a) Short Term Employee Benefits
All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified
as short-term benefits, Such benefits include salaries, wages, bonus, short term
compensated absences, awards, ex-gratia, performance pay etc. and the same are
recognised in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b) Post-Employment Benefits

(i) Defined contribution plan
The Company’s approved provident fund scheme, superannuation fund scheme,
employees’ state insurance fund scheme and Employees’ pension scheme are defined
contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than the contribution
paid/payable under such schemes. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes
is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(ii)Defined benefit plan
The employee’s gratuity fund scheme and post-retirement medical benefit schemes
are Company’s defined benefit plans. The present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation under the
defined benefit plans, to recognise the obligation on the net basis.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability
and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the Balance Sheet with a
corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which
they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss in
subsequent periods.

c) Other long term employment benefits:
The employee’s long term compensated absences are Company’s defined benefit plans.
The present value of the obligation is determined based on the actuarial valuation using
the Projected Unit Credit Method as at the date of the Balance sheet. In case of funded
plans, the fair value of plan asset is reduced from the gross obligation, to recognise the
obligation on the net basis.

d) Termination Benefits :
Termination benefits such as compensation under voluntary retirement scheme are
recognised in the year in which termination benefits become payable.




3.17 Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of
share-based payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (equity-settlied transactions).

Equity-settled transactions
The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the
grant is made using an appropriate valuation model,

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP)
reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Company's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a
period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining
the grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed
as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value.
Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair
value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested irrespective of whether the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or
service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised
is the expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the award are
met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair
value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification. Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the
counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately
through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the
computation of diluted earnings per share.

3.18 Earnings per share
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Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of
all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity
shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outstanding
equity shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of
the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive
equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods presented for any share splits and
bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the financial
statements by the Board of Directors.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to.
a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of meney is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as
a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it
is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the Financial Statements.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the Financial Statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable.

Non-current assets held for sale/ distribution to owners and discontinued
operations

The Company classifies non-current assets (or disposal group) as held for sale if their carrying
amounts are recoverable principally through a sale rather than through continuing use.
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Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes
to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be
committed to the sale expected within one year from the date of classification.

The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary
for sales of such assets, its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not
abandoned. The Company treats sale of the asset to be highly probable when:
¢ The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset,
* An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if
applicable),
* The asset is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation
to its current fair value,
* The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year
from the date of classification, and
* Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant
changes to the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Non-current assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the
fair value less costs to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented
separately in the balance sheet.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the assets to fair
value less cost to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in the fair value less
Cost to sell of an asset but not in excess of the cumulative impairment loss previously
recognised, A gain or loss previously not recognised by the date of sale of the non-current
assets is recognised on the date of de-recognition.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/
distribution to owners are not depreciated or amortised.

A discontinued operation qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity
that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:
* Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
» Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business
or geographical area of operations; or
* Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are
presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from discontinued operations in
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision maker.




3.22 Events after the reporting period

Adjusting events are events that provide further evidence of conditions that existed at the
end of the reporting period. The financial statements are adjusted for such events before
authorisation for issue, Non-adjusting events are events that are indicative of conditions that
arose after the end of the reporting period. Non-adjusting events after the reporting date are
not accounted but disclosed,

3.23 Exceptional Items

An item of income or expense which by its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in order
to improve an understanding of the performance of the Company is treated as an exceptional
item and the same is disclosed in the notes to accounts

4. Critical accounting Judgements and key source of estimation uncertainty

factors, including estimation of the effects of uncertain future events, which are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The Management has considered the possible effects, if
any, that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of its
assets. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the
management in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amount recognised in the financial statements and / or key sources
of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

4.1 Revenue recognition

The Company assesses its revenue arrangement in order to determine if its business partner is
acting as a principle or as an agent by analysing whether the Company has primary obligation
for pricing latitude and €xposure to credit / inventory risk associated with the sale of goods. The
Company has concluded that certain arrangements are on principal to agent basis where its




4.2 Customer loyalty program reward points

Customer loyalty program reward points having a predetermined life are granted to customers
when they make purchases. The fair value of the consideration on sale of goods resulting in such
award credits is allocated between the goods supplied and the reward point credits granted, The
consideration allocated to the reward point credits is measured by reference to fair value from
the standpoint of the holder and revenue is deferred. The Company at the end of each reporting
period estimates the number of points redeemed and that it expects will be further redeemed,
based on empirical data of redemption / lapses, and revenue is accordingly recognised.

4.3 Provision for discount and sales return

The Company provides for discount and sales return based on season wise, brand wise and
channel wise trend of previous years. The Company reviews the trend at regular intervals to
ensure the applicability of the same in the changing scenario. Provision is created based on the
management’s assessment of market conditions.

4.4 Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit plans and other post-employment benefits and the present value
of the obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future
pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies
consistent with the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation and extrapolated as
needed along the yield curve to correspond with the expected term of the defined benefit
obligation. The underlying bonds are further reviewed for quality. Those having excessive credit
spreads are excluded from the analysis of bonds on which the discount rate is based, on the
basis that they do not represent high quality corporate bonds.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to
change only at intervals in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases are based
on expected future inflation rates for the country,

Further details about defined benefit obligations are provided in Note 31.

4.5 Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using
valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where
possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair
values, Judggeres include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and




volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial instruments. See Note 36 for further disclosures.

4.6 Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts
are based on the ageing of the receivable balance and historical experience. Additionally, a large
number of minor receivables is grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment
collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when management deems them not to
be collectible.

4.7 Share-based payments

The Company initially measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with employees using a
binomial model to determine the fair value of the liability incurred. Estimating fair value for
share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate valuation
model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life
of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them. For equity-
settled share-based payment transactions, the liability needs to be measured at the time of
grant. The expenses recognised for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in 42.

4.8 Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

The Company has taxable temporary difference and tax planning opportunities available that
could partly support the recognition of these credits as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the
Company has determined that it can recognise deferred tax assets on the tax credits carried
forward and unused losses carried forward, :

Further details on taxes are disclosed in Note 26.

4.9 Inventories

An inventory provision is recognised for cases where the realisable value is estimated to be lower
than the inventory carrying value. The inventory provision is estimated taking into account
various factors, including prevailing sales prices of inventory item, the seasonality of the item’s
sales profile and losses associated with obsolete / slow-moving inventory items.

4.10 Useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets

The Company reviews the estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets at the end of each reporting period. During the financial year ended March 31, 2022,
there were no changes in useful life of property plant and equipment and intangible assets other
than (a) useful life of leasehold improvements which have been considered lower of the lease
term or useful life and (b) those resulting from store closures / shifting of premises.




4.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF
model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include
restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future
investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future
cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

4.12 Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognising provisions and contingencies have been made in
accordance with the applicable Ind AS. A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event,
the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Where
the effect of time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows.

The Company has significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects which
are not recognized on the balance sheet. In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities
may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company.

There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and
circumstances, are not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such
obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected
as liabilities in the Financial Statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final
outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Company invelved, it is not expected that such
contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability (Refer Note 14
and 27).

4.13 Lease Term

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with
any periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised,
or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be
exercised.
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Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN - U64201G11995PLC024598
Notes to the Fi ial Stats ts for the year ended 31 March, 2022.

Note 7 : Financial assets

7 (a) Investments Rs. In Crores
As at As at
oA Face Value per 2
share in Rs.  March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021
Non-current investment

Investment .ia equity shares {fully paid up)

Subsidiaries - ed at cost (Ung) d)
Arvind Youth Brands Private Limited* (Refer Note 1 below) i0 68.16 68.07
(March 31, 2022: 6,80,68,879; March 31, 2021: 6,80,68,879)
Value Fashion Retail Limited 10 0.01 0.01
(March 31, 2022: 10,000; March 31, 2021: 10,000)
Total Investments 68.17 68.08
A R LB SN £ A, TR . AN
Aggregate amount of quoted investments w -
Aggregate it of ung d i t it 68.17 68.08
te impairment in value of i - %
*Includes 5,40,39,844 shares (March 31, 2021: 5,40,39,844) which are pl dged bor gs of the Ce y
Notes 1:
Increase in the Cost of investment during the year includes recognition of N on Fair Val of Financial Guarantee provided for loan taken by
subsidiary. The same is delailed below:
Rs. In Crores
Subsidiary 2021-22 2020-21
Arvind Youth Brands Private Limited 0.09 *

2. The Company has complied with the b oflayerspresmbedunderdause(s'l)ofsectionZoftheActmadwimthe(:ompanles(kestmmmnumberofuyers)

Rules, 2017.
3. The Company is wholly d subsidiary of Arvind Fashi

Limited, Parent Company which has prepared consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31,

2022, Accordingly, the Cempany has availed an exepmtion as per Ind AS 110 paragraph 4(a) for not preparing the consolidated financial statements.

7 (b) Trade receivables ~ Current Rs. In Crores
As at As at :
Fiesicwiors March 31,2022 _March 31, 2021
Unsecured, considered good 548.99 : 480.18
Significant increase in Credit Risk - -
Credit Impaired 22.35 27.66
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts (22.35) {27.66)
Less © Provision for Refundable Habllity {Refer Note No. 3 below) (133.69) {102.22)
Total Yrade and other receivables ; 415.30 377.96

Notes:

1) No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Comp y either

ally or jointly with any person nor any trade receivables are due from firms or

private companies respectively in which any director is a director, a partner or 3 member.

2) Trade receivables are given as security for borrowings as disclosed under Note 13(a).

3) Refundable Liability recog: d pursuant to Ind AS 115 - revenue from contracts with custormer.

Allowance for doubtful debts
The Company has provided allowance for doubtful debts based on the iifetime expected credit loss model using provision matrix.
M in afl e for doubtful debt :
Rs. In Crores
% =8 As at As at
Shcme March 31, 2022 _ March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 27.66 12.47
Add : Allowance for the year (Refer Note 25) - 19.54
Less : Deduction due to Business transfer (Refer Note 40) - (4.35)
Less : Provision reversed during the year (Refer Note 17) (5.30) .
Balance at the end of the year 22.35 27.66




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN - U64201GI1995P1LC024598

nmwmnmtmmuhrmnumu March, 2022,
ing Scheduk

Trade receivabl
As at March 31, 2022
Rs. In Crores
Ommmmfomiugmmdudmdplvm
Particulars Notdue | egsthan 6 Months - More than 3 Total
6 ' 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years ¥
Undisputed Trade receivables - 361.42 176.86 7.96 2.75 548.99
Considered Geod
Undisputed Trade receivables - 6.76 4.37 9.28 20,41
credit impaired
Disputed Trade receivables - 1.78 = 0.19 1,94
credit impaired
Total 361,42 176,86 7.96 11,26 a.37 9.47 571.34
Less : Altowance for doubtful debts (22.35)
Less : Provision for Refundabie liability (133.69)
Net trade receivables 415.30
As at March 31, 2021
s, In Crores il
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Notdue Lessthan 6 Months - More than 3 Total
6 Montk 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years years
Undisputed Trade receivables - 191.13 279.61 9.44 - - - 480.18
Considered Good
Undisputed Trade receivables - - - 9.12 4.51 5.69 6.17 25.49
credit
Disputed Trade receivables - - - 1.27 - 0.89 - 2.17
credit impaired
191,13 27961 19.83 451 6.58. 617
Less : Allowance for doubtful debts (27.66)
Less : Provision for Refundable liability (102.22)
Net trade receivables 377.96




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN - U64201GI1995PLC024598
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022.

7 {(c) Loans Rs. In Crores
Particulars A% at AE At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Non-current
Loans to employees 0.81 1.01
0.81 1.01
Current
Loans to employees 331 3.32
Loans to related parties(Refer Note 32) 48.01 12.38
'51.32 15.70
Total Loans 52,13 16.71
Notes: cE
{1) No loans are due from directors or pr s of the Company either severally or jointly with any person,

Loans to related parties that are repayable on demand

Rs. In Crores

Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, zq;x'
° Type of Borrower e ~ ""' - - -
tean  outstanding town
: Outstanding 0 Outstanding omam (%)
Related Parties A6.01 12.38 R

7 {d) Cash and cash equivalents

Rs In Croces

Partic As at %
ot - March 31, 2022 3& 202!
Cash on hand
Balance with Bank
In Current accounts and debit balance in cash credit accounts 5.78 1.53
Total cash and cash equivalents 5.78 1.53
I AR S NS e
7 {e) Wm Iunk balance Rs. In Crores
As at - Asat
"'"“"" March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Hdd as Margin Money* 15.97 10.75
ed with Safes Tax Department = 0.02
Total other bank balances 1597 10.77
R e e L i s LARET L
* Under lien with bank as Security for Guarantee Facility
7 (f) Other financial assets Rs. In Crores
: As at As at
e March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
{Unsecured, considered good uniess otherwise stated)
Non-current
Security deposits 24.93 97.99
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months - 0.21
24.93 98.20
Current
Security deposits
- Considered Good 54.14 22.47
- Considered Doubtful 2.01 0.55
Less : Alk e for Doubtful Dep (2.01) {0.55)
54.14 22.47
Income receivable 0.15 3.94
Aocrued Interest 0.32 0.46
e claim receivabl 0.19 0.15
Other Receivables 2.31 15.50
57.11 42,52
Total ather financial assets 82.04 140.72
Note : er Current Financial assets are given as security for borrowings as disclosed under Note 13(a).
M t in all for doubtful deposits Rs. In Crores
g As at As at
Fatines ~ March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Bal at the beginning of the year 0.55 0.66
Add : Allowance for the year ( Refer Note 24) 1.46 -
Less : Write off {Net of recovery) * (0.11)
Balance at the end of the year 2.01 og_i.

g Atmedabad-1

N §’

T




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN - U64201GJ1995PLCO24598
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022.

7(g) : Fi ial Assets by category ; Rs. In Crores
Particulars COosT FVTPL FVOCI Amortised Cost
March 31, 2022

Investments

- Equity Shares 68.17 - : - .
Trade Receivables . » - 415.30
Loans - - * 52,13
Cash & Bank balance - . » 21,75
Other financial assets “ - » 82.04
Total Financial Assets 68.17 - - 571.22
March 31, 2021 i
Investments

~ Equity Shares 68.08 - ~ -
Trade Receivables - = . 377.96
Loans * - + 16.71
Cash & Bank balance " . - 12.30
Other financial assets = = » 140,72
_Total Financial Assets 68.08 - - 547.69

For Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies, refer Note 38,
Fair vaiue disclosure for financial assets and liabilities are in Note 36 and fair value hierarchy disclosures are in Note 37.

Naote 8 : Other assets Rs. In Crores
9 : As at As at
ety 4 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Non-current
Capital advances 9.19 1.02
Sales tax paid under protest 31,56 22.66
40.75 23.68
e
Current
Advance to suppliers
- Considered Good 22.57 41.65
- Considered Doubtful 1.56 1.56
Less : Provision for doubtful advances (1.56) (1.56)
22.57 41.65
Prepaid expenses 6.10 9.22
Returnable Asset (Refer Note No. 3 and 5 below) 51.31 44.51
Fareign Exchange Forward contracts 0.04 -
Balance with Government Authorities (Refer Note No. 1 below) 107.62 70.39
Other Current Assets 36,57 78.81
224,21 244.58
AT
T 264.96 268.26
SRR
Jetal S

1) Balance with Government Authorities mainly consist of input credit,

2) Other current assets are given as security for borrowings as disclosed under Note 13(a).

3) Returnable Asset recognized pursuant to Ind AS 115,

4) Ne advances are due from directors or promoters of the Company either severally or jointly with any person.

5) Returnable Assets are accounted, considering the nature of i tory, ageing and net realisable value. Accordingly, Rs.11.70 Crores (March 31, 2021 Rs. 8.01 Crores)
has been provided. The changes in write downs are rec gnised as an exp in the Stat

Provision for Doubtful Advances

Movement in provision for doubtful advances: Rs. In Crores
R : 5 ) As at As at
Porhwen. , : March 31, 2022 _March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 1.56 1.56
Add : Provision made during the year = -
Less : Wrile off of doubtful advances = =
Balance at the end of the year 1.56 1.56
Note 9 : Inventories (At lower of cost and net realisable value) Rs, In Crores
A = As at As at
Pherictue March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Trims and accessories 12.58 30.58
Stock-in-trade 453.38 390.54
Packing materials 4.13 9.92
T &5 - 470.09 431.04
ote? e

1) Inventory write downs are accounted, <considering the nature of inventory, ageing and net realisable value. Accordingly Rs. 112.62 Crores (Previous year - Rs. 92.34
Crores) has been provided. The changes in write downs are recognised as an expense in the Statement of profit and loss.

2} Inventories are given as security for borrowings as disclosed under Note 13(a).

Note 10 : Non- Current Tax Assets (Net) Rs. In Crores
. As at As at
Faticuta : ' March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021
Tax Paid in Adv o(NgofP ision) 16.24 17.38
. 16.24 17.38
47K

Total




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN - U64201GJ1995PLC024598
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022,

Note 11 : Equily share capital

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Particulars
No. of shares Rs. In Crores No. of shares Rs. In Crores

Authorised share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 20,00,00,000 200.00 15,00,00,000 150.00
(March 31, 2022: Rs. 10 each)

Issued and subscribed share capital
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 15,75,00,000 157.50 13,27,00,000 132.70
(March 31, 2022: Rs. 10 each)

Subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 15,75,00,000 157.50 13,27,00,000 132.70
{March 31, 2022: Rs. 10 each)

Total 15,75,00,000 157.50 13,27,00,000 132.70

11.1. Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting period

‘Pa Flculnre As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

No, of shares Rs. In Crores No. of shares Rs. In Crores
At the beginning of the period 13,27,00,000 132.70 9,62,78,723 96.28
Add: Issue of Share Capital 2,48,00,000 24.80 3,64,21,277 36.42
Qutstanding at the end of the period 15,75,00,000 157.50 13,27,00,000 132.70

11.2. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to the equity shares :

The Company has one class of shares referred to as equity shares having 2 par value of Rs. 10 each. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per
share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential
amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

11.3. Shares Held by Holding Company and Promoter Group :

Particilars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
- No. of shares Rs. In Crores No. of shares Rs. In Crores
Arvind Fashions Limited (along with nominees) 15,75,00,000 157.50 13,27,00,000 132.70

11.4, Number of Shares held by each sharehoider holding more than 5% Shares in the Company :

hold As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
N " tho o No. of shares % of sharoholdln_g No. of shares % of shueholdlng__
Arvind Fashions Limited (along with nominees) 15,75,00,000 100% 13,27,00,000 100%

11.5. Objective, policy and procedure of capital management:
Refer Note 39.




Arvind Litestyle Brands Limited
CIN - U64201G31995PLCO24598
mummmmcmnumnnm»,m.

Note 13 5 Other Laulty P340 Crnees
Farsculars A at As

Note 12.1 Perpetual Debt

Perpetual Nan-Canvertible Debentures

At the beginning of the year g .

Issund during the year * . 100.00 -

Balance at the end of the year 100.00 -
Touni Pespetual gapr 160,60 .
Note 12.2 Reserves & Surpius
Capital reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 58,05 59,05

Balance at the end of the year $3.05 m
Securittes premium

Balance at the beginning of the year 143271 1,093.06

Add: Addition during the year 218.20 338.65

Balance at the end of the year 385093 S832718
mmmmwcmmu)

Batance al the beginning of the year 345 207

Add: Contribution received during the yoar 0.36 139

Balance at the end of the year 3.82 .48
Retained Earnings

Balence at the beginaing of the year (1,196.81) (822.32)

#dd; Profit/(Loss) for the year {286,60) {375.73)

Rdd / (Less): OCI for the year o~ 3

Balance at the €nd o th year : (13207} Gsea)
Total resarves & surplus 230.76 z&l_
Rs—— e e
Joasioaner aquity. 220EE, AL,

* Duoig the year mmmc&nom.wm wm mco\muuumuuwmhmuumCw.-nprmmnmmu

Arvind Fastuaos Limited (the hoiding > nature with no fixed maturity o- redemption perod and are caliable on at the option of the Company. These securities are

.wmcmunmmutuwummw nmmﬁmnmhnmuﬂ'h&ww&uuhmmmmmﬂmmnm“

The descnption of the nature and purpose of each reserve within equity is 23 follows :

». Capital reserve

Capial reserve 1epresants capital reserve on nalga W g TNue-v:mwnuamkoM*ﬂmmummhmMummhmwawwmwﬁ
b. Securities premium

Sacurities premium is created due to pramium on issue of shares, These reserve is utiised in with the p ions of the Co Act.

< Lontribution fram Parent for E50P

m:mmasmmmm-uawmnmmmn(mhgcm)mrsmmmmmn«mmmmm-hmuymsumkn out In
Nate 42,

d. Cash Flow Hedge Reserve
The cash flow hedging reserve m-mwmmmm-muh-uammcrmmuumuwmummmsmmmwmmm
mehumanmmdmma&dlmummdmm and under the cash fiow hedge reserve will be reclassified

mm«mmmwwmmmmugmum«mw-.mnmmmnmmwm

Note 33 ¢ Cinancal Basilities

23 (o) Bavvawings Sy lncores
Particulars A mt As st
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

Borrowings (Refer Note 1(a) below)
Secured (At smortised cost)
Term loan from Banks 3338 107,65
Total tong-term borowings 3438 $112

Short-term Borrowings (Refer Note 1(b) and 2(a) below)
Secured (At amortised cost)

Current Maturites of Term loan from Banks 2773 36.07

Warking Capital Loans repayable on demand from Banks 31287
(including channe! finanding)
cured




Arvind Lifestyle Srands Limited

CTIN - UG4201GI1995PLCO24598
muwmmmmmwmunmnn 2022,
1. Secured Borrowings

32 Lang tarm

Particulars Rale of interest ua;:u:am uu:;an. Secuty Yiews of Sapwrmant
Fepre Loans a3 o 2598 watahnonty in
4 years, starting from
208
Rupee Loans B.95% =7 #81 . In 17 irstutoents o
LMSIMMWMSW
years, startig from
mmm.amunnmmdm Is ber 2020, b
3. Corporate Guarentee glven by Arvind Fashions
Hire Purchase loans 7.75% - 9.35% (X2 mlw«- of related veticles. pavwent ot
Instatmienrs beginning
frm the month subsequent
the loans
Short term
-‘L"m.. Mate of interest  As ot Narch 31,  As at March 31,
= hny provy Seeurity Pledge of shares
Warwieg cantsl leans 7.ab% - B.30% 3154 1,09,60,183 equity shares of
(Arvind Youth Brands Frivate
Limited {'AVEPL') owned by the HorC
Company.
Working capdat i, e 17503
1. 3,25,57,864 equity shaces of
AVBPL owned by the Company. s81
2, 4,91,64,090 equity shares of |
Company held
Werting (H0AS 0 TR 40,00 g
Waorking capital foans 637% - GA5% For
Yes Bank
Ereerse T <
Mayiieg captat lowys 840% 3560 AR R
2. Unsecured Borrowings ' '
g :
- ; Rate of intersst As at March 31, 2022 a'unmu.aipn
ety Daaats T EiFOM BT L
3. AR charges or are regi with ROC wathin the statutory pesiod. %

d.mc«wm-rmmwwmmumumnnmwmumrur

based 01 closure of baok of accounts 3t the yesr end, the revised returns or

he said (aaility, the revised submissions made by the Company
buok debt on

of the

wrising 15, 5, Bgeing
es, and cther financial filed by the Company with such hanks or financial | are in agr with the Books of accoutt of the Company of the respective
quariers and no material have been
5. The has used the rmm;mwmmunsmp\wmmhml&m.
e w L,
‘ March 34, 2022 Mereh3n e
RN, 2082
st
Acceptances 105.60 86.08
Other Trad= Payables (Refer Note below)
~Taral dues of micro pr and small {refer note 1 below) 4745 115,38
] e SO35E 20595
Note
1. Based on the available, the s required under section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Srnatt (MSMED) Act, 2006 are presented as follows :
RS, In Coires
e TRt TR
‘ SouTE G Tireon (1n T Shown SRHEIATely] remainig WADAWE 15 BTy Suppher 3t The e : N
1) Pancipal 3ar 101,72
i) Interest 13.34 13.63
{b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in tesms of section xeumm.smmmmum
wmmmnm;mmmmummmmmmmmwn
@ay quring each accounting year;
373 18,36
{3 u-mdmdnﬂmhlwhomd&yhmmlmmmmww
mmmuqmmw)um.mmmuwwmmm.mammsmm
Development Act, 2008;
33,34 13.63
(d)mmutdnmmwmwuu&mammqm;m
13,34 13.63

(.uummumwmmimmmwp-yw even in the succeeding years, unt!l such date when the

mmmnmmwmwm,huzmd
under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterptises Development Act, 2006

of a

to its lead bankers
debtors/other

1263




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022,

& Yrade Payabies ageing schedule:

A% ot March 31, 2022 8, dn Cruses
Gutatanding for Trony dii date o P : Tatai

Partioing Notdus - Lecstheniyesr  L-2ymars 2-3 years """.:" o

Micro and smaill 1351 EEXT - . ; a7.45"

e M vCs Anluivons 41 W 743 238.87 5.8 1722 13.92 645.70

Total BELIETR 273.31 T EENF) LK R X T

Az ot March 31, 2021 Soiis e FateoT EJJ':_&"E“;&
Rartseutnes Notthie fessthaniyesr  1-2ysars Bdyows - WmBeeh

Wicro enterpises and smail 7316 @030 661 .61 187 115,35

e arwiatis ot ol 207.04 2.2 9.19 159 881 39.20

Towl 11357 .26 1,60 10,68 BoS0%




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Uimited
CIN - US4201GI1995PLCO24598
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022,

_33.(<) Other finaclal Yatiitios ;
Parvienlars As at &m
Nonecureent
Security Depasds 6828 47
66.28 i‘i‘.&"
Current
Seaurity Depusts 005 8.97
{nteyest accrued and due 1,90 3.44
TATEIRST accrued Bt not due 0N Borrowings . 7.88 645
Payable to employees 26.53 319
Payable for capital goods = 2” 6.40
42.25 56.45
el ARE. s
3 Financisl Liabilities Rs, In Crores
m_il.uu g
Barrowings - 41822
Trade payables 315
Deposits - 6841
Payable to employees - 653
tnterest accrued but not due - 188
Interest accrued and due - 199
Lease Liabiities - 8904
Mj?wgwm . sy
o Hasacs ishikies FOTOR
March 31, 2021
Borrowings - 51924
Trage payables 50509
Security Deposis 5677
Payabie o employees. - naie
Interest accarued but not due 645
Interest accrued and due 348
Lease Liabilitles 62425
Sy atle in respect ¢ Cootal googy [
— i3
Financsl instruments nsk management objectives and policies, refer Note 38
Fair value aisclosure for inanral assets and habilities are in Rote 36 and falr value hierarchy disclosures are In Note 37
Note 14: Provisions Rs. In Crores
ricols Ao ot ¥ e
Long-term
far emph (Refer Note 31)
Prosusot for lagve encashment. - 2.53 4.4
Provision for Gratuity 5.
: 781 54
Short-term
far {Refer Note 31)
Provision for leave encashment 1.78 2.82
Pravision for Gratulty
i i
In, . 1889,
As At Asat
BN NN
Curvent
Advance from customers 1281 18,54
Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted at sourae etr. 9.67 8,95
Undccrued Sale 0.36 €.36
Unecaruad Income from MELS Certificate 0.01 - »
spomer heferrEd Income of toyalty program rewacd pomts (Refer note () below) edal?, kO3,
ot 28 340,
(@) Deferred Incame of Loyalty Program Reward Points
]Mmmvhudtmdmmmmwmmmmwmmmhimmmhmmmwwm: E
Er Ty oo r— o5 :
Add: Provision made dunng the year (Net) (Refer Note 16) 143 2.52
; : 2 i 232
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Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN - U64201G)1995PLCO24598

Naotes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022.

Naote 16 : Revenue from operations Rs, In Crores
Year Ended Year Ended
Berieniurs March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021
Sale of products 1,389.83 B858.80
Sale of services 16.86 12,58
1,406.69 871.38
Operating income
Export incentives 0.14 0.06
Foreign exchange fluctuation on vendors and customers (Net) 1.28 1.97
Royalty ; - 3.32
Miscellaneous receipts 0.56 0.33
1.98 5.68
Total 1,408.67 877.06
}_-Mrmﬂan of revenue from Contracts with Customers Rs. In Crores
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A. Revenue based on Geography
i. Domestic 1,397.52 872.36
il. Export 11.15 4,70
1,408.67 877.06
B. Revenue based on Business Segment
Branded Apparels 1,408.67 877.06

Revenue from operations is shown net of schemes and discounts, Customer loyalty program and sales returns amounting to Rs.
176.11 crores, Rs. 1.43 crores and Rs. 277.04 crores (March 31, 2021 Rs. 156.48 crores, Rs. 2.52 crores and Rs. 183.34 crores)

respectively, as per the terms of contracts with its various customers.

Note 17 : Other income Rs. In Crores
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
_March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost 5.30 4.16
Profit on sale of Property, Plant & Equipment {Net) 4.31 0.21
Exchange difference (Net) - 0.11
Provision for doubt-ful debts written back 5.30 =
Gain on Reassessment of Lease (Refer Note 34) 4.13 16.06
Income due to Rent Waivers (Refer Note 34) 18.87 55.39
Miscellaneous income 0.50 0.88
Total 38.41 76.81
Note 18 : Purchases of stock-in-trade Rs. In Crores
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Garments & Accessories 1,005.34 193.30
Cost of Trims and accessories consumed (Refer Note 19) 40,84 35.14
Less: Ady due to Business Transfer (Refer Note 40) {168.78) {145.38)
Total ) 877.40 £3.06
Note 19 : Cost of Trims and ies d Rs. In Crores
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Stock at the beginning of the year 30.58 31.97
Add ! Purchases 22.83 33.75
53.41 65.72
Less : Inventory at the end of the year 12.57 30.58
Total 40.84 35.14




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN - U64201GJ1995PLC024598

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022.

Note 20 : Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Rs. In Crores

Particulars

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

Year Ended
March 31, 2021

Stock at the end of the year
Stock-in-trade 453,38 390.54
Stock at the beginning of the year
Stock-in-trade 390,54 888.47
Yotal {62.84) A
Note 21 : Employee benefits expense Rs. In Crores
Particulars Yeoar Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31= 2021
Salaries, wages, gratuity, bonus, commission, etc. (Refer Note 31} 87.52 85,08
Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer Note 31) 8.88 11.08
Welfare and training expenses 6,84 7.47
Share based payment to employees {Refer Note 42) 0.36 1.39
Total 103.60 105.02
Note 22 : Finance costs Rs, In Crores
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A. Interest Expenses on financial liabilities at amortised cost
Loans 32.42 48.27
Retated Parties 3.42 7.40
Lease libilities 26.22 30.11
Qthers 8.65 9.99
B. Exchange difference regarded as adjustment to borrowing cost 0.50 -
C. Other borrowing cost 5.73 12.05
Total 76.94 107.82
Note 23 : Depreciation and amortization expense Rs, In Crores
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment (Refer Note 5)

23.36 26.17
Depreciation on Right-of-Use assets (Refer Nate 34) 92.1% 98.62
Amortization on Intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 13,96 15.54
Totail 129.51 l40£§_




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN - U64201GJ1995PLC024598
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022,

Note 24 : Other expenses Rs. In Crores
Particulars * Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Power and fuel 2.49 4,57
Insurance 2.45 6.14
Processing charges : 2,55 2.37
Printing, stationery & communication 3.13 : 0.79
Rent :

Shart Term leases and leases of low-value assets (Refer Note 34) 9.39 3.82
Commission & Brokerage 142,68 123,53
Rates and taxes 1.43 1.95
Repairs :

To Building 1.00 0.70
To Others 19.23 22.40
Rovyalty on Sales 52.24 30.93
Fraight, Insurance & Clearing Charges 50.41 34.75
Legal & Professional Charges 11,02 1.58
Housekeeping Charges 0.47 0.20
Security Charges 1.16 0.30
Computer Expenses 9.74 0.49
Conveyance & Travelling expense 4.56 0.84
Advertisemnent and Publicity 58.34 20.25
Charges for Credit Card Transactions 3.67 2.11
Packing Materials Expenses 4.12 3.80
Contract Labour Charges 72.38 53.54
Sampling and Testing Expenses 1.42 0.57
Director's sitting fees 0.01 0.01
Provision for doubtful debts and advances (net) 1.46 -
Sundry debit balances written off - 0.49
Auditor's remuneration (Refer Note a below) 0.80 0.40
Business Conducting Fees 0.13 .
Bank charges 4,47 1.71
Warehouse Charges ‘ 3.27 0.56
Spend on CSR activities (Refer Note 35) 0.03 -
Exchange Difference (Net) 0.80 -
HVAC Charges 1.81 1.23
Miscell p 1.16 1.82
Total ﬁ@ 265.85
a. Break up of Auditor’s Remuneration Rs. In Crores
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Payment to Auditors as :
Statutory auditor Fees 0.70 0.40
Taxation Matters 0.03 -
Corporate law matters - L
Certification fee
For reimbur of XP
Total
Note 25 : Exceptional Items

Margin on Sales Return Provision
Inventory Dormancy Provision
Allowance for Doubtful Debtors
Gain on sale of preference shares (Refer Note 40) - (195.90)
Total - (68.18)




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN ~ U64201GJ1995PLC024598
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022.

Note 26 : Income Tax
The major component of income tax expense for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are:
Rs. In Crores
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022  March 31, 2024

Particulars

Current Tax

(Excess)/short provision related to earlier years 0.49 -
Deferred Tax
Deferred tax Charge/(Credit) 3.14 {0.18)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit & loss 3.63 (0.18)
QCI Section Rs. In Crores
Year Ended Year Ended
Particulai
v March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Statement to Other comprehensive income (CCI)
Deferred tax Charge/(Credit) 0.21 0.67
Deferred tax charged to OCI 0.21 0.67

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for the year ended
March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021:

A) Current tax Rs. In Crores
A ; Year Ended Year Ended

A tienincs March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Accounting profit/(loss) before tax {282.97) (375.91)
Tax Rate 34.944% 34.944%
Current Tax Expenses on Profit before tax at the enacted income tax (98.88) (131.36)
rate in India

Expenditure not deductible for Tax 0.86 3.44
Difference due to business transfer - 4,05
Deferred tax assets not recognised as realization is not probable 99.07 123.15
Others 3.64 0.54
At the effective income tax 4.69 (0.18)

Effective Income Tax Rate % ~1.66% 0.05%




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN - U64201GJ1995PLC024598
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022.

8) Deferred tax Rs. In Crores
Particulars Balance Sheat Statement of Profit & Balance Sheet Statement of
Loss and Other Profit & Loss and
Comprehensive Income Other
Comprehensive
As at Year Ended As at Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2028 March 31, 2021
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes 116.36 (2.18) 114.18 (7.19}
Effective Interest Method on Term Loans 0.02 (0.03) (0.01) (0.03)
ECL on Trade receivables , Security deposis 5.64 (0.55) 5.09 (5.09)
and Vendor Debit Balances
Expenditure allowable oh payment basis 7.28 2.34 9.62 0.51
Unused losses available for offsetting against 167.90 (20.38) 147,52 -
future taxable income
Unused tax credit available for offsetting 9.44 - 9.44 -
against future taxable income (MAT credit
entitlernent
Impact of Ind AS 116 17.29 24.28 41.57 11.57
Reversal of past period's Deferred tax assets
Others 1,19 (0.13) 1.06 4,77
Net deferred tax assets/({liabilities) 325.12 3.35 328.47 4.54
Note :

(i) The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax

liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority,

(ii) The Company has unused carried forward losses of Rs. 1193.88 Crores as at March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: Rs. 984.38 Crores). Out of
the same, tax credits on losses of Rs. 771.73 Crores (March 31, 2021: Rs, 356,13 Crores) have not been recognized on the basis that
recovery is not probable in the for ble future. The Company has stopped recognizing additional deferred tax asset on all the
components mentioned above, until it becomes probable that sufficient taxabie profits will be available.

Reconciliation of Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) Rs, In Crores
Particutars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021
Opening balance as at April 1 328.47 333.01
Deferred Tax income/(expense) during the period recagnised in profit or loss (3.14) 0.18
Deferred Tax income/(expense) during the period recognised in OCIL (0.21) {0.67)
Due to business transfer {Refer Note 40) - {4.05)

Closing balance as at March 31 325.12 328.47
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022.

Note 27 : Conﬂn_ggnt liabitities

Rs. In Crores

Particulars

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Contingent liabilities not provided for

a. Claims against Company not acknowledged as debts 1.77 10.65

b. Disputed demands in respect of
Excise/Customs duty - 11.05
Goods and Service Tax . 0.02
Sales tax and VAT (Refer note (d) below) 55.39 50.70
Income tax 24.62 4.96
Textile Committee Cess - 0.11
Provident Fund - 0.76

Notes :

(@) It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending resolution of the respective

proceedings.

{b) The Company does nat expect any reimbursements in respect of the above Contingent liabilities.

{€) The Company believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not rave a material adverse effect on the C P

y's financial posit and

results of operatians.

{d) Disputed demand for Sales Tax and VAT incudes d raised ly due to non-submission of vari statutory forms to appropriate authority.
Subsequent to the d d, the Company has collected forms covering substantial of d d. The Company is in the process of collecting balance
forms and hence no p is Idered y for the same.,

{e) There are numerous interpretative issues refating to the Supreme Court (SC) judgement on Provident Fund dated February 28, 2019. The Company will

make provision, on recelving further clarity on the subject.

Note 28 : Capital i t Rs. In Crores
As at As at
Particulars
7 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Capital commitments :
Estimated of C ts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for (Net of advances) . 1.85
Note 29 : Foreign Exchange D and Exp not hedg:
A, Foreign Exchange Derivatives
# In FC
: Exchange Rate
Nature of instrument (in equivalent Rs. In Crores
Rs.} usp
Forward contract to buy 75.79 - 0.33 25.28
B, Exposure Not Hedged
In FC In FC In FC
Nature of exposure USD Rs. In Crores TGRE Rs. In Crores K Rs. In Crores
Receivables
As at March 31, 2022 0.05 3.59
As at March 31, 2021 0.03 1.89 - - . -
Payable to creditors
As at March 31, 2022 0.80 60.92 0.01 1.01 0.05 0,44
As at March 31, 2021 0.56 41.04 0.01 1.03 0.05 0.45




Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN -~ U64201GJ1995PLC024598
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022,

Note 30 : Segment Reporting

Operating segment has been identified on the basis of nature of products and other guantitative criteria specified in the
Ind AS 108. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Company.

The Company's business activity falls within a single operating business segment of Branded Apparels (Garments and
Accessories) through Retail and Departmental Store facilities.

Geographical segment
Geographical segment is considered based on sales within India and rest of the world.
Rs. In Crores

Berticitars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Segment Revenue from continuing operation*
a) In India 1,397.52 872.36
b) Rest of the world 11,15 4.70
Total Sales 1,408.67 877.06
Segment Revenue from discontinuing operation*

a) In India 189.33 443.50
b) Rest of the world - -
Total Sales 189.33 443.50

Carrying Cost of Segment Assets from continuing operation**
a) In India 2,032.22 2,393.78
b) Rest of the world 3.59 1.89
Total 2,035.81 2,395.67
Carrying Cost of Segment Assets from discontinuing operation**

a) In India = 5.00 41.79
b) Rest of the world - -
Total 5.00 41.79

Carrying Cost of Segment Non Current Assets from continuing

operation**@

a) In India 360.76 677.51
b) Rest of the world - -
Total 360.76 677.51
Carrying Cost of Segment Non Current Assets from discontinuing

operation**@

a) In India - 9.09
b) Rest of the world - -
Total - 9.09

* Based on location of Customers
** Based on location of Assets
**@ Excluding Financial Assets and Deferred Tax Assets

Note:
Considering the nature of business of the Company in which it operates, the Company deals with various customers
including multiple geographics. Consequently, none of the customers contribute materially to the revenue of the Company.
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Arvind Lifestyle Brands Limited
CIN -~ U64201GJ1995PLC0O24598
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022,

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets of Gratuily are as follows: ' =43
Particul Year Ended Year Ended
colissesiohe March 33, 2022 March 31, 2021

Others (Insurance company Products) 100% 100%

A00% 100%
The ass| ions used in in ve defined benetit tions for the ‘s plans are shown below:
Particulars Year Ended Year

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Discount rate 5.20% 5.20%
7.11% for Front End 3.97% for Front End

Future salary increase Employee. 9.29% for others Employee. 8.8% for others
Expected rate of return on plan assets 5.20% 5.20%

48.6% on Front End 42.6% on Front End

Attrition rate Employee. 36% for others Empkoy:te'.‘ezrg.l% for
Morality rate during employment Indian assured lives Indian assured lives
M i ! riali

A quantitative sensitivity 2 p
Particulars Sensitivity level

s
Gratuity

Discount rate 50 basis points increase {0.09) {0.16)

50 basls points decrease 0.09 0.17

Salary increase 50 basis points increase 0.07 0.14
50 basis points decrease (0.07) - {0.13)
Attrition rate 50 basis points increase {0.02) {0.02)

50 basis points decrease 0,02 0.02

The above sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the actual benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur
in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of defined
benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of reporting period.

In presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit
method at the end of reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognized in the
balance sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the previous period.

followings are the expected future benefit payments for the defined benefit plan : s. I
= Year Ended Year E 1
- claistion a 021
Gratuity
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 3.04 3.70
Between 2 and 5 years 6.83 11,24
Beyond S years 2.79 5.09
Total expected payments 1};66 20.03
Weighted av. e dural of defined plan obligatio: discounted cash flows
3 Year Ended Year Ended
- Peiculors March 31, 2022 1, 2021
SRty 2 years 3 vears

Leave encashment

The Company has a policy on leave encashment which are both accumulating and non-accurnulating in nature. The expected cost of accumulating
feave encashment is determined by actuarial valuation performed by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date using projected unit credit
method on the additional amount expected to be paid/availed as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the Balance Sheet date.
Expense on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognized in the period in which the absences occur. 7

mpany has ni following as e nses a uded in Note No. 21 "E ee t expense”. %
Year Ended Year Ended
Ractiowturs 1, 2022 rch 31, 2021
Leave encashment 2.56 2.51

386, 2:83.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022,

Note 32 : Reiated Party Transactions

A As per the Indian Account
Name of Related Parties

s of the company are as follows:

Nature of Relationship

Arvind Fashions Ltd.

Arvind Youth Brands Private Limited

Value Fashion Retail Limited

Arvind Beauty Brands Retail Private Limited

PVH Arvind Fashion Private Limited {previously known as Calvin Klein Arvind
Fashion Pvt Ltd)

Arvind Limited

Arvind Ruf & Tuf Private Limited
Arvind True Blue Limited

Arvind Premium Retail Limited

Arvind Smart Textile Ltd

Manikandan Balasubramanian, Chief Financial Officer
Raghupathy S, Chief Financial Officer
Vijay Kumar BS , Company Secretary

Shallesh Shyam Chaturvedi, Chief Exceutive Officer

Sanjay S. Lalbhai

Abanti Sankaranarayanan

Suresh Jayaraman, Director

Pramod Kumar Gupta, Director

Piyush Gupta, Director

Lipi Jha, Company Secretary

Holding Company
Subsidiary Company
Subsidiary Company
Fellow Subsidiary Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Enterprise having significant influence by Key Managerial Personnel
Enterprise having significant influence by Key Managerial Personnel
Enterprise having significant influence by Key Managerial Personnel
Enterprise having significant inﬂuec;ce by Key Managerial Personnel

Enterprise having significant influence by Key Managerial Personnel

Key Managerial Personnel (Upto September 30, 2021)
Key Managerial Personnel (w.e.f. November 13, 2021)
Key Managerial Personnel (Upto March 31, 2022)

Key Managerial Personnel (Additional Director Upto 2nd June 2021,
Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. June 3, 2021)

Non Executive Director of Holding Company

Non Executive Director

Key Managerial Personnel
{Managing Director upto 2nd June 2021)

Key Managerial Personnel (Upto February 11, 2022)

Key Managerial Personnel (w.e.f. May 20, 2022)

Key Manageria! Personnel (w.e.f. May 27, 2022)

Note: Related party relationship is as identified by the company and relied upon by the Auditors,
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b, Transactions with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 Rs. In Crores
Enterprise having
e S intuence by ey
Faltow Ll an
Particulars Holding Subsidiary HManagement
Company Company e . P
Non-Executive
Dirsctor
Purchase of Goods and Materials
March 31, 2022 200.10 43.57 2.20 29 74
March 31, 2021 76.61 . 0.65 s
Purchase Return of Goods and Materials
March 31, 2022 & 51.19
March 31, 2021 11.90
Sales of Goods and Materials 0.08
March 31, 2022 - ' 023
March 31, 2021 25.47
Sales Return of Goods and Materials 001
March 31, 2022 x i ; " 037
March 31, 2021 v . !
Receipt of Services-Shared services : . 6.13
March 31, 2022 6.05 2 3 ‘ 6.59
March 31, 2021 398 . ;
Receipt of Services-Commission ‘ .31
March 31, 2022 : . ) : 1.66
March 31, 2021 5 v *
Raceipt of Services-Others 117 . 9.69
March 31, 2022 2 < 0.48 % 2.80
March 31, 2021 : e g 4
Rendering of Services-Royalty
March 31, 2022 4.17
March 31, 2021 5.4
Rendering of Services-Commission & Incent!
Mareh 31, 2022 : i
March 31, 2021 i '
Rendering of Services-Shared service 5 4 1.85
March 31, 2022 o e g3 - LIS
March 31, 2021 3, ;
Rendering of Services-Others 3 12.77
March 31, 2022 : 317
March 31, 2021 :
Interest Expense ’ 3.42
March 31, 2022 .40
March 31, 2021 T

aerane——————EEE - i Lonts
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Transactions with related parties for the yeat ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 (Continued) Rs. In Crores
Enterprise
having

Key Monagerial significant

Particulars Holding Subsidiary Fellow Personnel and  influence by Key
Company Company Subsidiaries Non Executive "
Directors Personnel and
Non-Executive
Director
Fees ’

March 31, 2022 - . - 0.01 -
March 31, 2021 o - - 0.01 -
Contribution Given for Employee Benefit Plans
March 31, 2022 . 0.49 - 384 -
March 31, 2021 - - . 0.65 -
Interest Income
March 31, 2022 - - 0.42 . »
March 31, 2021 - 1.30 1.75 - -
Loan Given/(Repaid)
March 31, 2022 - - 98.00 * -
March 31, 2021 - 2.55 7.00 » -

Loan Taken/(Repayment of Loan)
March 31, 2022 . . (58.62) .
March 31, 2021 (19.98) ~ .

Issue of Equity shares
March 31, 2022 248.00 - - a
March 31, 2021 326.07 - o -

Investments in equity shares
March 31, 2022 - . v -
March 31, 2021 - 68.07 . »

Investments in preference shares
March 31, 2022 - - - .
March 31, 2021 . 58.96 & ‘

Transfer of assets under scheme of

arrangement

March 31, 2022 . -
March 31, 2021 - 156.99 - ~

Issue of NCD
March 31, 2022 100.00 - - -

March 31, 2021 . . px «
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€. Balances Rs. th Crorse
Enlterprize
& having
Key llmn:::l significant

articulars Holding Subsidiary Fellow Personnel Influence by Key

. Company Company Subsidiaries Non Executive Management
Diractors Personnel and
Non-Executive
Rirector

Guarantee Given
March 31, 2022 . 52.50 - .
March 31, 2021 - 25.00 . 5
Guarantee Avallad
March 31, 2022 802.40 ¥ *
March 31, 2021 984.26 » by
Trade and Other Recelivable
March 31, 2022 A 80.76 1.52 " 2.04
March 31, 2021 . 40.41 . » 134
Trade and Other Pavable :
March 31, 2022 134.58 - 2.02 ’ 11.02
March 31, 2021 13.69 37.46 16.67 - 31.20
Raceivable in nipeet of Loans and Deposits
March 31, 2022 » . 48.01
March 31, 2021 . 3.76 8.62
Pavable in respect of Loans and Denosits :
March 31, 2022 43.29 . 0.11 »
March 31, 2021 40.22 - 0.12 ¥ S

Msmwnbmulnnncﬂmwmlnhmm

1) Transaction entered into with related party are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances
other than loan given & taken at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash.

2) Loans in INR taken from the related party carries interest rate of 8.50% (March 31, 2021 : 8.50%)

3) Loans in INR given 40 the related party carries interest rate of 7.50% - 8.50% (March 31, 2021 : 8.50%)

Commitments with related parties

The Company has not provided any commitment to the related party as at March 31, 2022 (March 31, 2021: Rs. Nil)

Transactions with key management personnel

Compensation of key ma ement personnel of the company Rs. In Crores
. Year ended Year ended

Partioniars March 31, 2022  March 31, 2021

Short-term employee benefits 384 Cae

Termination benefits o.o; 0:03

Share based payments 3.4 el

Total compensation paid to key management personnel 7.35 068
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Note 33 : Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted) Rs. In Crores
Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Particulars

Profit/(Loss) attributable to ordinary equity holders

Continuing Operations (153.98) (177.78)
Discontinuing Operations (132.62) (197.95)
Total no. of equity shares at the end of the year 15,75,00,000 13,27,00,000
Weighted average number of equity shares
For basic EPS 14,63,74,521 11,36,26,272
For diluted EPS 14,63,74,521 11,36,26,272
Nominal value of equity shares 10 10

Continuing Operations

Basic earning per share (10.52) (15.65)
Diluted earning per share (10.52) (15.65)
Discontinuing Operations

Basic earning per share (8.06) (17.42)
Diluted earning per share (5.06) (17.42)
Continuing and Discontinuing Operations

Basic earning per share (19.58) (33.07)
Diluted earning per share (19.58) (33.07)
Weighted average number of equity shares

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS 14,63,74,521 11,36,26,272
Effect of dilution: Share options " =
Heghied averags 14,63,74,521 11,36,26,272

number of equity shares

Particulars 31-03-2024
Date No. of shares  Weight Cumulative Weighted Avg
Opening 01-04-2021 13,27,00,000 71 13,27,00,000 2,58,12,877
Allotment 11-06-2021 48,00,000 115 13,75,00,000 4,33,21,918
Allotment 04-10-2021 2,00,00,000 179 15,75,00,000 7,72,39,726
31-03-2022 - - - -
15,75,00,000 365 14,63,74,521
A 31-03-2021
Salicuiarn Date No. of shares Weight Cumulative Weighted Avg____
Opening 01-04-2020 9,62,78,723 118 9,62,78,723 3,11,25,724
Allotment 28-07-2020 2,37,21,277 154 12,00,00,000 5,06,30,137
Allotment 29-12-2020 50,00,000 92 12,50,00,000 3,15,06,849
Allotment 31-03-2021 77,00,000 3 13,27,00,000 3,63,562

13,27,00,000 365 11,36,26,272
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Note 34 : Leases
A. The Company has adopted modified retrospective approach as per para C8 (C) (i) of Ind-AS 116 "Leases" ta its leases.

8, The Company has taken Showrooms and other facilities on lease period of 1 to 9 years with option of renewal. Disclosures as per Ind AS
116 ~ Leases are as follows:

C. Changes in the carrying value of right of use assets (Showrooms) Rs. In Crores
Year Ended " Year Ended

T teoiec * March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 512.73 576.56
Recognition of ROU Asset on Deposits 11.70 -
Additions 7537 176.72
Deletions (247.01) (76.76)
Business transfer (Refer Note 40) - (35.87)
Depreciation (charged to statement of profit and loss) (92.19) (98.62)
Depreciation on Discontinued Operations (9.14) {29.70)
Balance at the end of the year 251,26 512,73
D. Maovement in lease liabilities Rs. In Crores
Year Ended Year Ended

Fertionla March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
“Balance at the beginning of the year BoA.25 727.78
Recognition of Lease Liability on adeption of Ind AS 116 - »
Additions 75,17 176.72
Delctions {310.04) (95.57)
Business transfer (Refer Note 40) - {42.01)
Finance cost accrued during the year (charged to statement of profit and loss) 26.22 9.36
Finance Cost on Discontinued Operations 6.50 44.61
Adjustment due to Rent Waivers {(Refer Note a below) (27.29) (72.21)
Payment of lease labilitics 105.77 124.43

Note a: The Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide notification dated July 24, 2020, issued an amendment to Ind AS 116-Leases, by inserting a
practical expedient w.r.t “Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions” effective from the period beginning on or after April 01, 2020 and vide
notification dated June 18, 2021, extended practical expedient up to June 30, 2022.

Pursuant to the above amendment, the Company has applied the practical expedient by accounting the unconditional rent concessions in
"Other Income”. 5

E, Contractual maturities of lease liabilities Rs. In Crores
Year Ended Year Ended
Ptieminne March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Less than one year 70.31 112.12
One to five years : 172.08 322.50
More than five years 46.65 189.63
Totai 289.04 624.25

F. The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the
obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due,

G. The Company incurred Rs. 9.39 Crores (March 31, 2021: Rs. 3.82 Crores) towards expenses related to rent expense - short-term lease
and leases of fow value assets pertaining to continuing operations.

2 L4 ate Social Res, bil CSR) Activities : s. In Crores
. As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Particualrs
aiammGMmqummeWWCmnvdnﬂmﬁem - <

b) Amount spend during the year (in cash)
i) Constn\mtion/ acquisition of any asset -
i) on purposes other than (i) above 0.03 -

€) Amount unspent during the year
d) Total of previous years shortfall -
e) Reasons for shortfall -
f) Details of related party transactions

Name

Relationship ;

Amount -
a) Movement of CSR Provision

Balance as per last financial statements

Add: Provision made during the year

(Less): Utilised during the year

Balance at the end of the year

O E

Y
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Note 36 : Fair value disclosu_res for financial assets and financial liabilities

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair value of the company'’s financial instruments, other
than those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:
Rs. In Crores

As at As at
PAticulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Carrying Amount 418.27 679.24
_Fair Value 418.27 679.24

The management assessed that the fair values of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans trade receivables, other
current financial assets, trade payables and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to
the short-term maturities of these instruments. '

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions
were used to estimate the fair values

The fair value of borrowings and other financial liabilities is calculated by discounting future cash flows using rates currently
available for debts on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

Note 37 : Fair value hierarchy
The Company provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the company's assets and liabilities as below, if any:

Fair value hierarchy
evel 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments

L
that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the
closing price as at the reporting period,

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.
This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

There are no transfer between level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.
The Company’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting

period.
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Note 38 : Fi i risk g objectives and policies
The Company's principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise borrowings and trade & other yables. The main purp. of these financial liabilities is to
finance the company’s aperations and to support its op ions, The ¢ y's principal fis | assets include 1 ts, loans given, trade and other receivables and

cash & short-term deposits that derive directly from its operatians,

The Company's activities EXpose it to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. In order to minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company,
derivative financial instruments, such as foreign exchange forward contracts, foreign currency option contracts are entered to hedge certain foreign currency exposures,
Der are used exc ly for hedging purposes and not as trading / speculative instruments.

covering
investment of excess liquidity,

{n) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will Auctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises two types
of risk: interest rate risk and currency risk. Fi ial instn. ffected by market risk include borrowings, deposits, Investments, trade and other receivables, trade
and ather payables and derivati finandial instr

Within the various meth logies to analyse and ge risk, company has impl d 2 system based on ™ itivity ty on ic basis, This teol enables
theviskmnagersmidenﬂfythcriskposvﬁmdtheentkies.’ itivity bysi vides an app quamﬁuuonolmeexposuremtheevennlutcenamspzciﬁed

parameters were to be met under a specific set of assumptions, The risk estimates provided here assume:

* @ parallel shift of 50-basis points of the interest rate yield curves in all currencies.

= @ simuitaneous, paraliel foreign exchange rates shift in which the INR. appreciates / depreciates against ali currencles by 2%

The potential economic impact, due to these assumptions, is based on the occurrence of adverse / inverse market conditions and reflects estimated changes resulting from
the sensitivity analysis. Actual results that are included in the Statement of profit & loss may differ materially from these estimates due to actual developments in the
global financial markets,

The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying values of gratuily, pension and other post-retirement obligations and provisions,

The following assumption has been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:
The sensitivity of the rdevnntstaumentolpmﬁtorlossilmis theelfegtoftheassumeddunoes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and
financial habifities held at respective period/year end including the effect of hedge accounting.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 2 financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market Interst rates. The Company's
explosure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relotes primiarily to the Company's debt obligations with floating interst rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. As al March 31, 2022, approximately 21% of
the Company’s Borrowings are at fixed rate of interest (March 31, 2021: 6%)

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to 3 reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of
hedge accounting. With all other held ¢ the pany’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows: .

Rs., In Crores

Particulars Effect on profit M':::
March 31, 2022
Increase in 50 basis points {1.92)
Decrease in 50 basis points 1.92
March 31, 2021
Increase in 50 basis points (3.18)
Decrease in 50 basis points 3.18
Exclusion from this analysis are as follows: - L
- Fixed rate financial instruments measured at cost : Since a change in interest rate would not change the carrying of this category of instr , there is no net
income impact and they are excluded from this analysis

- The effect of interest rate changes on future cash flows is excluded from this analysis.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an wilt fi because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company transacts
business in local currency and in foreign currency, primarily in USD, The C has obtained foreign ¢ y loans and has foreign currency trade p{syabies‘and
receivables etc, and is, therefore, exposed to foreign exchange risk, The Company may use farward contracts or foreign exchange opti ging risk r

from changes and Huctuations in foreign currency exchange rate,

The company manages its foreign currency risk by hedging appropriate percentage of its foreign currency exposure, as approved by Board as per established risk
management policy. Details of the hedge & unhedg ition of the company given in Note 29,
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Fareign currency sensitivity
The folk g tables d ate the sensitivity to a biy ble change in USD, EUR and SEX rates to the functianal currency of respective entity, with all other
variables held . The S exp © ta foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material, The impact on the company’s profit before tay is due

to changes in the fair value of monet;ry assets and labilities, The impact on the <company’s pre-tax equity is due to changes in the fair value of foreign currency manetary
Rems designated as cash flow hedge,

Rs. In Crores
Change in USD  Effect on profit before Effect on profit Change in SEK Effect on profit
Particulars rate toax Change in EUR rate before tax rate before tax
March 31, 2022 +2% {(1.15) +2% {0.02} +2% {0.01)
~2% 1,15 2% 0.02 -2% 0.01
March 31, 2021 +2% {0.78) +2% (0.02) +2% (0.01)
-2% g 0.78 . ~2% 0.02 ~2% 0.01

The movement in the pre-tax effect is a result of a change in the fair value of financial instruments not designated in a hedge relatianship. Although the financial

instruments have not been d in a hedge rela hip, they act as an economic hedge and will offset the underlying transactions when they ocour,

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obkigations under a fi ial instrument. or customer conlract, leading to a financial loss. To manage this, the
Group periedically assesses financial reliahility of cust s and other « parties, taking into account the financial condition, current economic trends and analysis of

histarical bad debts and ageing of financial assets, Individual risk imits are set and periodically reviewed on the basis of such information. The Group is exposed to credit
tisk from its operating activities {primarily trade recei s} and from Rts fi g activities, i ing deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other

financial instruments.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to credit risk

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 days to 60 days credit term. Credit limits are for all ¢ based on rating
eriteria. Outstanding rec bles are r ! and any shi ta major are generally covered by letters of credit. The company has no
Comm!mtbnofcluﬂriskasthemstomerbaseiswdydmibuwdbom y and geographically.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients, In addition, a large ber of minor rec are panyed into
h d for colk y. The calculati sbasedonmlinwrmdhlstmdna.Themnxinmexpmummcmﬂtmkattht

companys and
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 7b. The company does not hold collateral as security. The company evaluates the

Fi ¥ and cash d. it

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is ged by the C Y's treasury dep. in with the C W’s policy. & of
sumhsfmdsmmadeonlvwmappmved:ountupammnhameﬂsmc i threshold under the party risk process, The
Campany monitars the ratings, credit spreads and financial strength of its counterparties, Based on its an-going of party risk, the C di its
exposure to various parties. The G y's in to credit risk for the components of the Balance sheet as is the carrying amount as disclosed in
Note 36,

{<) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company may not be able to meet its present and future €ash and collateral obligations without incurring unacceptable losses, The
company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and colla | reg The company ¢ its liquidity position
and deploys a robust cash t system. It maint i sources of financing including bilateral loans, debt and overdraft from both domestic and
international banks at an optimised cost. It alse enjoys strong access to domestic capital markets across equity.
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the company's financial labilities based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Rs, In Crores
Particulars Less than 1 year 1 year or more
As at March 31, 2022
Interest bearing borrowings 383.89 34.38
Lease Liabilities 70.31 218.73
Trade payables 693.15 -
Other financial liabilities # 42, 28
1,189, 21,
As at March 31, 2021
Interest bearing borrowings 571.39 107.85
Lease Liabilities 112.12 512.13
Trade :,..m 505.25 g
Qther financial liabilities# 56, 47
x,ziii‘xi“ [ 7,%

# Other financial liabilities includes interest accrued but not due of Rs. 7.88 Crores (March 31, 2021: Rs. 6,45 Crores)

B risk

Concentrations arise when ber of parties are engaged in similar busi ctivities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features
that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. ations indicate th
rel y of the C: y's performance to developments affecting a particular industry, Concentrations indicate the rel itivity of the Ci y's
perfe to devel affecting a particular industry.

In order to avoid exc::stve concentrations of risk, the Ct;mpany has a diversified portfolio and policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the
maintenance of a diversifiad portfolio. Identified cancentrations of credit risks are controlied and managed accordingly.
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Note 39 : Capital management
Wmepurputofthecomny'scapual , capital inchy issuedmycmlmumqummmtauemmwmdtu
company, The primary objective of the pany’s capital g isloelsufeu:almahulmaneﬁduxavﬁalmmeandhunhyuomrwoshom«to
support its bosi and I harehoider value,
Thtoomaanymnagesitscaplmwmemdm.ﬁtﬂmmstolthmmh«mm&mwas“‘ qui To mai or adjust the
mpnustnmure,themmpawmyadjustme““ 4 pay L to shareh ,mmmmWwwmmemmmumg
amrmo.vmid'isnetdebtdlvidedbytoblclphlpusnadat.memmyimmmm.m&baﬁngbmmdbwmmbsmmm-
unndq:osits(h\duhgotherbmblhnm).

Rs. In Crores
As gt As at
Padticulecs 33,2022 March 31, 20
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings (Note 13) 418.27 679.24
Less: Cash and Cash equivalent (induding other bank balance and {21.75) (12.30)
Book Overdrafk) {Note 7(d), 7(e) and 13(c))
Net debt 396,52 666,94
Equity share capital (Note 11) 157.50 132.70
Other equity (Note 12) 1
Total capital ﬁ 3 2 11
Capital and net debt
Gearing ratio 44.82% 60.74%,
1In order to achieve this overali ob , the C y's capital & gst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the
that define capital structure requirements and other ratios. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
call b mnmmmmmhmmamaumn,mzzmmsnapom
d i acoek mdmw,!hempwmmmmmhrpemﬂmmdcmm
for ing capital during the years ended March 31, 2022,
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Note 40 : Business Combination
Summary of business combinations during the previous year
{A) The Company has transferred by way of sale, the retail trading business of "Flying Machine® ("FM") brand respectively as a

going concern to Arvind Youth Brands Private Limited (AYBPL), a subsidiary company on a slump sale basis for a lump sum
net cash consideration of Rs. 156.99 Crores respectively during the Previous Year ended March 31, 2021.

Details of Net Assets transferred

Particulars : Rs. In Crores
Assets

Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets 5.80
Riaht of Use Assets 35.87
Inventories 145.38
Trade receivables 42.27
Other Current assets 45.81
Deferred Tax Assets 4.05
Total Assets 279.18
Liabilities

Trade payables 25.42
Other Liabilities 54.76
Lease Liabilities 42.01
Total Liabilities 122.19

Net Assets Transferred 156.99

(B) Note on sale of Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares:
During the Previous Year ended March 31, 2021:
1. Arvind Youth Brands Private Limited ("AYBPL") (subsidiary of the Company) issued 58,95,852 Compulsorily Convertible
Preference Shares ("CCPS”) of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up to the Company;

2. Subsequently, the said CCPS were sold to Flipkart India Private Limited for Rs. 260.00 Crores resulting into profit of Rs.
195,90 Crores (net of related expenses) which has been recognised in Exceptional Items.
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Note 41 : Discontinued operation

The Company has decided to discontinue Brands like Unlimited, GAP, Hanes,
Tuf. Accordingly, the activities of these brands business that are considere

New Port, The Children's Place and Ruf &
d as disposal group are presented as a

discontinued operation in accordance with the provisions of Indian Accounting Standard 105 - 'Non-current Assets

Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’. Consequently, Loss before tax and tax expenses relating to these brands
business have been disclosed separately as discontinued operations as part of the financial statements. The previous

for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Rs. In Crores

Assets and liabilities classified as Held for Sale:
e e a ool 1€0 @S Held for Sale:

Particulars As &t A% ut
Assets
Property, plant and equipment & Intangible assets » 9.09
Nen Current Financial assets
Other financial assets - 14.39
Inventories 5.00 69.56
Trade receivables - 29.67
Total assets 5.00 122.71
Liabilities
Trade payables 5.00 41.79
Total liabilities 5.00 41.79
Results of discontinued operations for the year are Rs. In Crores
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Income
Revenue from operations 189.33 423.42
Other incame 67.32 20.08
Total Income 256,65 443.50
Expenses
Purchases of stock-in-trade 251.75 258.86
Emoloyee benefits expense 23.16 44.36
Finance costs 13.01 55.39
Depreciation, Amortization & Impairment expense 27.92 96.21
Other expenses 73.43 186.63
Total expenses 389.27
Profit before tax _(132.62) {197.95)
Tax expense

Deferred tax - -
Profit after tax {132,62) (197,95)
Net cashflows of discontinued operations are presented Rs. In Crores
below:
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Net cashflows from operating activities (84.28) (172.82)
Net cashflows from investing activities 5 &
Net cashflows from financing activities (13.01) {55.39)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from discontinued operations {97.29) (228.21)
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Note 42 : Share based payments

Arvind Fashions Limited, the halding pany (AFL) has J E Stock Optlon Scheme 2016 (“ESOP 2016") and Employee Stock Option Scheme
2018 {"ESOP 2018"), p t to the | of the sharehol of the Company 3t their General Meeting held on October 15, 2016 and on May 12, 2018
fespectively, Up to March 31, 2022, the Company has 18,69,274 options outstanding under ESOP 2616 and 3,15,200 options outstanding under ESOP 2018 in
teu of d ger under the Seh and i inioequdnmnbscisqunysmresoﬂxenluedns,ludu.

Expense arising from share- based payment transactions
Total expenses arisina from share- based In orofit or Joss as part of
emplovee benefit expense vrere as follows :

R, in Crares
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Employee option plan A 0.36 139

Jotal employee share based payment expense .36 148

Note 43 : coviD-19

Given the COVID-19 p , the € has ! internal and ext infe ion for ing the financial st and
recoverability and carrying values of its propenty, plant and A Mdﬁm«tnmw;mnmemdthemnl&m
heing i the C has 1 that the d ism'likelvmmatuia"yimpma‘mehnwcopmonsdmemmnvandm:
mmmyumymvdueouheseassecs.Homver.inmnﬂﬂ:elysauwmofrtocwmccolcovwlhcevunﬂlinmmyﬂﬂulmmtﬁeseeslm
as at the date of approval of these financlal The Company will contimue to closely any to future ditions and
will recognise the impact, if any, prospectively in future periods.

leev\m:mdmiqfwmevwmmdn.le,mCommydeddedlooﬂermgher‘ to liquidate old y rapidly and take back goods
mmma:mmmmuum»:g«ummmmmnwwm~ Is for faster In order to achieve these

objectives, for the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company had made additional provisions arising out of COVID of Rs.127.72 Crores vonsisting of Rs.27.45
Crores for Margin on Sales Retum, Rs.80.73 Crores for Inventory Dormancy and Rs,19,54 Crores for Alf for Doubitful D: which are 4 under
Exceptional Ttems,

Note 44 ¢ Code of Soclal Society, 2020
M?&Mmdln&ahaswmcodedsuwmrﬂv.Zozottmcmc)whm\mayimaamer il by the C

Provident
NM,GrMdeSlL‘JheCodehavebcenmmthewauo“mla.mwutﬂeoﬂvemmmmmnmnd.fhcmywmm
impact of the Code and will record related impact in the period it becomes effective.

Note 45 : New A Pr to be ad: after March 31, 2022

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) notifies new or 1o the existing under C {Ingian 9 ) Rules as
issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companices (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendiment Rules, 2022, applicable from Apsil 1,
2022, as befow:

Ind AS 103 - Ref to C F:

The amendments specify that to qualify for r as part of applying the hod, the assets acquired and liabiiities assumed must
meet the definitions of assets and liabllities in the C i F for F P g under Indian A g S {C i F )
issued by the I of Ch of India at the ition date. These changes do not sig y change the r of Ind AS 103,
The Company does not expect the amendment to have any material impact in its financial statements,

Ind AS 16 - Pr ds before i d use

memmmvmmmm’r«ndWM9MmecmM perty, plant and received from sciling items produced while
the Company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company
does not expect the to have any ial impact in its of its property, plant and f in its fi ial

mssw-o“mmm.-muurummambm
the mmmsmcwmatme‘cmdmﬂw\g'a(mxtmme ‘costs that relate directly fo the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract
tan either be incremental costs of fulfiling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to

Tulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentislly ® derification and the Company does not expect the to have any impact in its fi
statements,

wnm-mmwmxmns(mn

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the *10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in g whether to der a financial
Hablity. The Company does nat expect the d to have any in its fi it

Ind AS uc-mwmmtomun(xon)

The remove the il ion of the reimb of k id imp bymbwhmlamsduanypmmm!mrvgmng
mummmtumomumuuzmmmmormvm' i were di in that i ion, The € y does not expect the
amendment to have any material Impact In its financial statements,

Note 46 : Additi v Discl 25 per Sch I1Y of the Ci Act. 2013
{i) The Company does not have any benami property held in their name. o gs have been ini on or are g against the Parent and Indian
subsidiaries for heiding benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition} Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder,

{W) The Company has nct been daclared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution aor ather lender or government or any government authority.

(i) The Company has lied with the requi with respect to number of layers as prescribed under section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Restriction on number of layers) Rules, 2017,




l.!heconmnyhum-dunmdorhmedumvemdlundsto-wom« ) or l '.brognmhnes(lmmmﬂlmes)uthlm
understanding that the Intermediary shall: a)mamm!thMInv&hmmamﬁnesumiwmwmmwhltsw«bvoron
Behalf of the Parent Comp y (Ultimate 8 L wb)ﬁwideanvmmee,miv«wmwwmwumemtmwm

n mcmmvhumtrweivedmv mmmmmws)uemy(m),wmmmmmm(wm Party) with the ding ( r
in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: -)Dhcﬂywwwenduimcﬂhﬂhtrmormmmmmymm\ﬂmbym
mumlfdmuumnrty(ummw:Benelkhrm)orb)hm&mgwml«.ucuﬁtyoﬂhl«hormbdﬂofmulimubmﬂd-iu.

(v)mmvmmmmwmdedmcwomwmumvdmmmemr.
or disck

(vi) The C y not ulmmmvnmmmmmmmdmm&mwnwmmmmsumhrnm
income Tax Act, 1961(mu.mumwmymmmwmdmxmenxml%l)muytﬁemn

Vil The Company does not have any tra with the comp. struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies
Act, 1956 during the year.
Note 47: R uped, Recast, Recl
PrevbusmodﬁgumshuebunMmm/wmwmmm,tomwmmtdndmmmmwcomﬂymthe

of the Sch 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 effective from April 1, 2021.

Note 48 : Iwmmm&.mm
memmwwdummsmmmmomurwmnombdmsheumwpviortome P of fi to ds
the y for and/or g of sub events and W the fing i st As of May 27, 2022, there were no

iy events and tr taber or rep that are not already disclosed.
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